Key Management (cont’d)

Alam Sekitar Malaysia Sdn Bhd (ASMA)

Johar Bin Yusof
• Chief Executive Officer

SHAMUDDIN Bin Sulaiman
• Chief Operating Officer

ASMA Environmental Consultancy Sdn Bhd (AEC)

Lau Lai Keat
• Chief Executive Officer
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Key Management (cont’d)

Saudi ASMA Environmental Solution LLC (SAES)

dr. Fadil fouad basyyoni
• President

ENAYATULLAH
REHMATULLAH AHMED
• Senior Vice President

Nadzrah Binti Hashim
• Vice President - Finance

ALS Technichem (M) Sdn Bhd (ALS)
P.T. ALS Indonesia

Dr. chin teen teen
• General Manager
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Key Management (cont’d)

PJBUMI Berhad (PJBUMI)

Mohamed Nasir Wan Idrus
• Chief Executive Officer

T. Anbalagan
• Chief Operating Officer

Progressive Uni San (M) Sdn Bhd (PUM)

Mohamed Nasir Wan Idrus
• Chief Executive Officer
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Corporate Social
Responsibility

FebRUARY 2011

Jointly organised Fishing Competition in Putrajaya

February 2011 Jointly organised
canoeing inter varsity
competition
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Corporate Social Responsibility (cont’d)
March 2011

March 2011 - Conducted
Environmental Camp for
Sekolah Bestari in Putrajaya

july 2011
July 2011 - Participated in 2011 Putrajaya Floria Exhibition

As part of PICORP Corporate social
responsibility project, ASMA had provided
a free water quality monitoring services
on the water from the drain that leads
to a lake nearby Zoo Negara. Our staff is
seen as taking samples from the drain
water during heavy rain. The results of
the water quality index will be given to
Zoo Negara for their onward action.

March 2012

25 March 2012 - ASMA had sent volunteers to participate in the tree planting on river banks
organized by Yayasan Salam Malaysia together with MBSA, JPS and FRIM.
Our volunteers were there to show their green heart. It is hoped that ASMA can participate in
more of their monthly program.
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Calendar of Events
March 2011
4 March 2011 - Friendly football match between Alam
Sekitar Malaysia and DOE KL.

April 2011
ANAK-ANAK MANDI DI TASIK
AIRNYA JERNIH UMPAMA KACA
MEMELIHARA ALAM SENTIASA CANTIK
AGAR WARISAN TERUS TERPELIHARA
13 April 2011 - ‘A Cruise for Life’ field trip was held on a cruise at Putrajaya lake attended by fellow press,
analysts as well as PICORP and PJ Bumi Board of Directors.
The objective of the field trip is to update press and analysts of PICORP’s main activities and the latest development
of PICORP’s participation in the green technology industry. Dr. Rani had provided a presentation of ASMA’s role in
water monitoring work of Putrajaya Lake and Wetland whilst Tn Hj Johar presented on PICORP’s Transformation
Plan and Green Technology Projects Pursuit.

SEPOHON KAYU DAUNNYA RIMBUN
LEBAT BUNGANYA SERTA BUAHNYA
WALAUPUN HIDUP SERIBU TAHUN
KALAU TAK SEMBAHYANG APA GUNANYA

On April and May 2011, HR had organized for a motivational training
for some of the companies within the group and majority of the staff
had attended the training held at Al-Sakinah Resort, Janda Baik for
the first module.
The objective of the training is non other but to provide staff with the
awareness of how important to have a clear vision and mission in
life and to also teach them in ways to implement it by ways of having
a corresponding personal and organizations vision and mission. The
training was well accepted by the staff.
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Calendar of Events (cont’d)

March - September 2011
26 March 2011
- Bowling

24 September 2011
- Volleyball

25 June 2011
- Badminton

PICORP Intercompany games was held in order to enhance
employee relationships among the group. The games is to
develop the winning attitude and break the ice within the
employees. All staff and family members were invited to join
the games. This games had been continuously organized
from year to year. In 2011 3 games were selected.

July 2011

15 July 2011 - marked a very significant date in PICORP history. Our Group CEO had
presented to all staff the ‘PICORP WAY’, a new way of doing business, a way that is
centralized to our founder’s philosophy and mission in doing business.
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Calendar of Events (cont’d)

September 2011
PICORP HARI RAYA OPEN HOUSE
9 September 2011 - as usual PICORP will organized their annual
group Hari Raya Open house by inviting customers, vendors and
suppliers for ‘makan-makan’. PICORP also invited orphans from
Rumah Kesayangan Ku, Rawang to make the occasion a more
meaningful event.

PICORP yearly brainstorming session
2-3 December 2011 - PICORP had organized the yearly
brainstorming session at Awana Genting. All the key personnel
involved in the brainstorming attended the session to discuss and
propose future business model and target for each organization
and unit. Brainstorming is one of PICORP management process
which is diligently being organized in order for the group to do
their yearly business plan.
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Calendar of Events (cont’d)

January 2012
21 January 2012 - PICORP
2011/2012 Annual Dinner was
held at SACC CONVENTION
CENTRE, SHAH ALAM with a
theme Arabian Night.
The objective of the dinner is
none other but to reward staff
and family members for their
commitment and hard work
throughout year 2011.
All
staff and family members are
invited to come. About 600
staff inclusive family members
attended the dinner.
PICORP ANNUAL SALES CONFERENCE
PICORP Sales Conference was held on
5 and 6 January 2012 at Apartment
Permaisuri Port Dickson. The Sales
and Business Development team from
across the group had participated.
Exciting programs were arranged for
the team including knowledge sharing
and sales process challenge.

March 2012

7 March 2012 - PICORP had participated in the ASIAWATER EXPO on 27 March 2012. Our booth display
our latest acquired technology the Bi-Act Submerged Contact Biodisc Aerator (SCBA) and the Bi-Act
Super Dissolve Oxygen (SDO) pack. The Minister of Energy, Green Technology and Water Malaysia, Y.B.
Dato’ Seri Peter Chin Fah Kui had visited PICORP Booth.
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Statement on Corporate Governance
The Board is responsible in ensuring high standards of corporate governance are maintained in all activities
undertaken by the Group, which are essential to protect and enhance the shareholders’ value. This report has
been prepared in accordance to the principles and best practices as set out in the Malaysian Code on Corporate
Governance (“the Code”), the Board is pleased to provide the following statement, which outlines how the Group
has applied the principles laid down in the Code. Except for matters specifically identified, the Board of Directors
has complied with the best practices set out in the Code.

1.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Group operates under the overall control of the Board, which is ultimately accountable for the strategic
directions of the Group’s activities and competent management of the Group’s business operations and
performance as well as enhancing its risk management processes and structures.
The Directors possess a mix of skills and experiences ranging from business and finance, corporate,
environmental and engineering to general disciplines. Their diverse backgrounds and experience add value
and provide invaluable inputs from different perspective. A profile of each Director is presented on pages 15
to 18.
Board Balance
The Board is made up of the Executive Chairman, four Independent Non-Executive Directors and two NonIndependent, Non-Executive Directors.
To better manage the Group, the Board members have separate roles. The day-to-day management of the
Group business falls under the responsibility of Executive Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer
who are also responsible to implement the strategy and policies approved by the Board.
The presence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors who are influential in the Board’s decision making
process ensures the balance of power in the exercise of objective and independent judgment on corporate
issues dealt with at the Board. It also ensures that the interests of the major stakeholders and minority
shareholders are effectively promoted and represented through the Board. Given the current composition
of the Board which reflects a strong independence element the Board does not consider it necessary at this
juncture to nominate a Senior Independent Non-Executive Director.
Supply of Information
The Directors are provided with timely and relevant information, which includes quarterly and annual financial
statements, board papers recommending business and operational proposals and decisions, corporate and
business development plans, status reports and minutes of meetings so that they can maintain full and
effective control over the strategic, financial, operational and compliance issues.
All Directors have access to the Group’s senior management and the advice and services of the company
secretary. If required, the Directors, whether as a full Board or in their individual capacity may take
independent professional advice in the furtherance of their duties at the Company’s expense.
Appointments to the Board
The Board views no necessity at this juncture to establish a Nomination Committee as the functions were
totally performed by the Board, that is well represented by Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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Statement on Corporate Governance
(cont’d)

1.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)
Meeting and Procedures
The Board of Directors meets regularly and has a formal schedule of matters, specifically reserved for
its decision. These matters include determining and reviewing strategies of the Group, overseeing the
compliance and statutory obligations, operational issues and financial review and the following shows the
attendance of the Directors:
Name of Director

Status of Directorship

Attendance

Haji Zaid bin Haji Abdullah

Executive Chairman

7/7

Dato’ Mohamed bin Hashim

Independent, Non-Executive Chairman

2/2*

Hassan bin Hussain

Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director

6/7

Hajjah Zaidah binti Mohd Salleh

Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director

7/7

Datuk Abdul Hamid bin Sawal

Independent, Non-Executive Director

5/5**

Emeritus Professor Dato’ Dr. Mohd Sham Independent, Non-Executive Director
bin Mohd Sani
Lee Weng Chong
Independent, Non-Executive Director

7/7

Dato’ Hajjah Rosnani binti Ibarahim

N/A***

Independent, Non-Executive Director

6/7

*
Retired on 23 May 2011
** Appointed on 23 May 2011
*** Appointed on 14 May 2012
Retirement and Re-election
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”), all Directors who are appointed by the
Board shall retire and are subject to re-election by the shareholders at the next annual general meeting
(“AGM”) after their appointment. The Articles also provide that one-third of the Directors for the time being,
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM and be eligible for re-election. Provided always that all
Directors shall retire from office once at least in each three (3) years but shall be eligible for re-election.
Directors’ Training
All Directors have attended the Mandatory Accreditation Programme. The Directors shall be committed to
continuous education to equip themselves with the board knowledge and understanding of various provisions,
rules, regulations and the latest development in the industries to effectively discharge their duties and
obligations.
Further, as an integral part of orientation and education programme for Directors, the Management provides
them with a comprehensive understanding of the operations of the Group through briefings on its operations,
financial control systems and site visits. The following are the seminars attended by the Directors during the
financial year:
1)
2)
3)

Key Amendments to Listing Requirements 2011, 19 Dec 2011. Tricor Corporate Services Sdn Bhd.
Corporate Disclosure Guide 2011, 19 Dec 2011, Tricor Corporate Services Sdn Bhd.
Licensed Secretaries Training Programme, 6 Dec 2011, Suruhanjaya Syarikat Malaysia.

All Directors are encouraged to attend further training that may be required from time to time to keep them
abreast with the current developments of the industry as well as the current changes in laws and regulations
where appropriate.

annual report 2011 | PROGRESSIVE IMPACT CORPORATION BERHAD

31

Statement on Corporate Governance
(cont’d)

1.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)
Directors’ Remuneration
The Remuneration Committee recommends to the Board the remuneration framework and remuneration
package of the Executive Directors. The level of remuneration reflects the experience and level of
responsibilities undertaken by the Executive Directors. The determination of the fees of the Non-Executive
Directors is decided by the Board as a whole.
Details of Directors’ Remuneration
The aggregate Directors’ Remuneration paid or payable to all Directors of the Company by the Group for the
financial year, and categorized into appropriate components and bands are as follows:-

Type of Remuneration
Fees

Executive
Directors
RM
79,000

Non Executive
Directors
RM
133,226

Total
RM
212,226

Salaries & Other emoluments

1,508,000

152,000

1,660,000

Pension costs - defined contributions plans

264,480

-

264,480

Pension costs - defined benefit plans

734,626

-

734,626

Benefits in kind
Total

76,619
2,662,725

285,226

76,619
2,947,951

Remuneration Bands

Number of Directors
Executive

2.

Total

Non-Executive

Below RM 50,000

3

3

RM 50,000 - RM 100,000

2

2

RM 750,001 - RM 800,000

1

RM 1,150,001 - RM 1,200,000

1

Total

2

1
1
5

7

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board has delegated specific task of monitoring executive actions and determining the rewards of
executive Directors to the Board committees, which have all been established with formal terms of reference.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee assist the Board to meet its responsibilities regarding financial reporting and strengthens
the independence of the external auditors through the ability to communicate with Non-Executive Directors.
It also monitors the work of the internal audit functions and also assesses the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal control.
The Audit Committee meets the external auditors annually to discuss the annual financial statements and
their audit findings, including where necessary, the audit plan and any other matters arising on the annual
reporting.
The report of the Audit Committee is set out on pages 34-36.
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Statement on Corporate Governance
(cont’d)

2.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD (cont’d)
Remuneration Committee
The committee members are:
•
•
•

Lee Weng Chong – Chairman
Datuk Abdul Hamid bin Sawal
Emeritus Professor Dato’ Dr. Mohd Sham bin Mohd Sani

The Committee shall recommend to the Board the remuneration packages of the Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company in all its forms, drawing from outside advice as necessary. The
determination of remuneration packages of Non-Executive Directors is a matter of the Board as a whole.

3.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting
It is the commitment of the Board to provide a balanced, clear and meaningful assessment of the Group’s
financial performance and prospects. As such, the Board ensures that the quarterly result announcements
are made on a timely basis and that the annual financial statements of the Group are made out in accordance
with the applicable approved accounting standards and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965.
Internal Control
The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control to provide reasonable
assurance of the effectiveness of the Group’s business operations and risk management. The Board is
assisted by the Audit Committee and the internal audit function.
Relations with the Auditors
The Audit Committee meets with the external and internal auditors at least once a year to discuss on audit
plans, findings and the financial statements. This is further described in the Audit Committee Report as set
out on pages 33-35.
The audit fees and non audit fees paid and payable to the external auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young, by the
Group during the financial year are as disclosed in the financial statements.

4.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR RELATION
The Board acknowledges the need of its shareholders and potential investors to be informed of the Group’s
performance and major developments. As such, the Company ensures that the quarterly announcements of
the Group’s financial are made on timely basis to provide its shareholders with an overview of the Group’s
performance and operations. In addition, general announcements and press releases were made to update
the shareholders on any significant developments.
General meetings convened by the Company remains the principal avenue for the opportunity to communicate
with all shareholders and provide forums for discussion between the Directors and shareholders.
Shareholders are encouraged to participate, seek clarification and make suggestions during the annual
general meetings.
Information on the Company and the Group’s products and services is also available at the Company’s
website at www.pic.com.my
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Audit Committee Report
The Audit Committee was established to assist the Board in ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control.

MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE
The members of the Audit Committee, appointed by the Board, and the details of their attendance of meetings
during the year are as follows:
•

Dato’ Mohamed bin Hashim
(Chairman / Independent, Non-Executive Director)

2/2*

•

Datuk Abdul Hamid Sawal
(Chairman / Independent, Non-Executive Director)

3/3**

•

Emeritus Prof. Dato’ Dr. Mohd Sham bin Mohd Sani
(Independent, Non-Executive Director)

5/5

•

Hajjah Zaidah binti Mohd Salleh
(Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director)

5/5

* Retired on 23 May 2011
** Appointed on 23 May 2011
There were five meetings held during the financial year. The Executive Directors, Group Business Risk Assurance
Manager and representatives of the internal and external auditors attended some of the meetings by invitation to
brief the Committee on specific issues.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
Members
The Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst the Directors of the Company and shall be composed
of: a)
b)
c)

d)
e)

not fewer than three (3) members;
all the Audit Committee members must be non-executive directors with a majority of them being independent
directors;
at least one (1) member of the Audit Committee:(i)
must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants; or
(ii)
if he is not a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, he must have at least three (3) years’
working experience and:(a)
he must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the 1st Schedule of the Accountants
Act 1967; or
(b)
he must be a member of one of the association of accountants specified in Part II of 1st Schedule
of the Accountants Act 1967.
(iii) fulfils such other requirements as prescribed or approved by the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
no alternate director shall be appointed as an Audit Committee member; and
one of the Audit Committee members who is an independent director shall be appointed Audit Committee
Chairman by the members of the Audit Committee

.
Quorum

The majority of the members who must be independent directors present shall form a quorum. The minimum
quorum for the Audit Committee Meetings is two (2) members present, and in such case, both of them must be
independent directors to constitute a quorum.
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Audit Committee Report
(cont’d)

TERMS OF REFERENCE (cont’d)
Authority
The Audit Committee is granted the authority to investigate any activity, within its terms of reference and have
the resources which are required to perform its duties as well as full and unrestricted access to any information
pertaining to the Company and its subsidiaries. The Audit Committee is empowered to obtain independent
professional advice as necessary to assist the Audit Committee in fulfilling its responsibility. The Audit Committee
shall also have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal
audit function or activity.
The Audit Committee may regulate its own procedures, in particular: (a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

the calling of meetings, including the convening of such meetings with external auditors, the internal auditors
or both, without any executive board member(s) or employees present. The other Directors and employees
can only attend such meetings upon Audit Committee’s invitation;
the notice to be given of such meetings;
the voting and proceedings of such meetings;
the keeping of minutes; and
the custody, production and inspection of such minutes.

Functions and Duties
The duties and functions of the Committee shall be: 1.

To recommend the nomination of a person and persons as external auditors and to review the re-appointment
and/or resignation of the external auditor the scope and general extent of the external auditors’ audit
examination and ensure co-ordination between internal and external auditors. The external auditor’s fee is
to be arranged and reviewed by the Committee.

2.

To review the quarterly results and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, to consider
on matters such as: •
•
•
•
•
•

3.

going concern assumption;
any changes in accounting policies and practices;
significant adjustments and unusual events resulting from the audit;
compliance with accounting standards;
compliance with stock exchange and legal requirements;
major judgmental areas.

To review the following and report the same to the Board: (a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

With external auditor, the audit plan, the evaluation of the system of internal controls and audit report;
The assistance given by the employees of the Company to the external auditor;
The adequacy of the competency, scope, functions and resources of the internal audit functions and
that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
The internal audit programme, processes, the results of the internal audit programme, processes or
investigation undertaken and whether or not appropriate action is taken on the recommendations of
the internal audit function;
Any related party transaction and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Company or
Group including any transaction, procedures or course of conduct that raises questions of management
integrity.
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Audit Committee Report
(cont’d)

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
The activities of the Audit Committee during the financial year were as follows:1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Reviewed the quarterly and annual financial statements and ensure that the financial reporting and disclosure
requirements had been complied with before recommending them for the approval of the Board.
The Audit Committee met with the external auditors and discussed the nature and scope of the audit,
considered any significant changes in accounting and auditing issues and reviewed pertinent issues resulting
from the audit of the financial statements.
Reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports prepared by the external independent professional
services firm, the findings and management action plan’s status.
Reviewed and approved the minutes of the Committee meetings.
Discussed and performed any other matters as agreed by the Audit Committee and the Board.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to an external consultant since March 2011. The internal
audit review of the Company’s operations encompasses an independent assessment of the Company’s compliance
with its internal controls and makes recommendations for improvements.
The outsourced internal audit function provides independent and objective advice on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control to the Audit Committee and thereafter to the management.
During the financial year, the outsourced internal audit functions conducted independent reviews and evaluated
risk exposures relating to the major components’ operations and information systems as follows:
•
Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;
•
Reliability of financial and operational information; and
•
Extent of compliance with the established policies, procedures, laws and regulations.
At the conclusion of the various audits carried out, the weaknesses, the recommended corrective action to be taken
together with the management’s response were highlighted to the Audit Committee. Subsequently, a follow-up
reviews were conducted to ensure that corrective actions were accordingly implemented by the management. The
total cost incurred to carry out the internal audit function in the financial year is approximately RM78,000.
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Statement on Internal Control
INTRODUCTION
The Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance requires public listed companies to maintain a sound system of
internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.
Guided by the Statement on Internal Control: Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies, The Board of
Directors (“the Board”) of Progressive Impact Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) is pleased to
provide the Statement on Internal Control outlining the nature and scope of internal control of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011 in line with the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa
Securities”).

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the assets of the Group as well as reviewing the adequacy, integrity and effectiveness
of the system. Internal control systems are primarily designed to cater for the business needs and manage the
potential business risks of the Group. However, such systems are designed to manage, rather than to eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve Group’s corporate objectives. In pursuing these objectives, internal control can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement, operational failures and fraudulent
activities.

KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL
Some of the key control procedures have been embedded in the operations of the business with sufficient assurance
mechanism to safeguard the assets of the Group and to preserve shareholders’ investments. The following key
elements ensure that the proper control regime is maintained:

1.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly results of the Group and recommends adoption of such results
to the Board before announcement to Bursa Securities is made.

2.

Risk Management
The Board with the assistance of the Audit Committee continuously review existing risks and identify new
risks that the Group faces and the management action plans to manage the risks on an ongoing basis.
The risk management process involves the senior management as well as the Executive Directors and Group
CEO through direct participation in periodic management meetings. These meetings are held to assess and
monitor the Group’s risk as well as deliberate and consider the Group’s financial performance, business
development, management and corporate issue.

3.

Internal Audit Functions
The Group has engaged an external independent professional services firm to carry out its internal audit
function. The outsourced internal audit function has undertaken detailed assessments of the risks and
reviews of the internal control systems of the Group’s operating environment. The areas of assessments and
reviews were set out in an internal audit plan which has been approved by the Audit Committee.
Arising from these assessments and reviews, the outsourced internal audit function has presented their
reports to the Audit Committee on their findings, recommendations for improvements and the response
from management for the Committee’s deliberation and consideration.
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Statement on Internal Control
(cont’d)

KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL (cont’d)
4.

Other Key Elements of Internal Control
The key elements of the Group’s system of internal controls are as follows:
•

An organization structure that formally defines lines of responsibility and delegation of authority;

•

Executive Directors and Group CEO participate actively in the daily operations of the Group and regular
operational meetings were held with the Senior Management team. The Senior Management of the
respective departments are delegated with the responsibilities to ensure that an effective system of
internal control is in place;

•

Regular review and assessment of the Group’s strategic direction after taking into consideration
changes in the market condition and key business risk;

•

Regular internal audit visits held to review the effectiveness of the business processes and system of
internal control;

•

The Audit Committee and Board of Directors reviewed the actual performance of the Group every
quarter against the budget set with detailed explanations of any major variances; and

•

Key functions such as finance, tax, treasury, corporate affairs, strategic planning and legal matters
and etc are controlled and managed centrally.

Weaknesses in Internal Controls that Result in Material Losses
The Board is of the view that the system of internal control was generally satisfactory. There were no material
losses incurred during the financial year as a result of weaknesses in the system of internal control that would
require disclosure in the annual report. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to take measures to strengthen the
internal control environment.
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Statement of the Director’s Responsibility
The Companies Act, 1965 (“Act”) requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which
gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group for that period.As required by the
Act and the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities, the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and the provisions of the Act.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011, the Directors have:•
•
•
•

adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently ;
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent ;
ensured applicable accounting standards have been followed ; and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
all times the financial position of the Group and of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Act. The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the
Company and, hence, for taking reasonable steps in the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Additional Compliance Information
1.

Utilisation of Proceeds
No proceeds were raised by the Company from any corporate proposal during the financial year ended 31
December 2011.

2.

Share Buybacks
There were no share buybacks by the Company during the financial year

3.

Options, Warrant or Convertible Securities
There were no options, warrants or convertible securities issued by the Company during the financial year.
The Company did not have an Employee Share Scheme in existence during the financial year.

4.

Recurrent Related Party Transactions (“RRPT”)
The breakdown of aggregate value of transactions conducted during the financial year is as follows:-

40

Subsidiary
involved

Transacting
Parties

Categories of Recurrent
Transactions

Actual
Value
(RM)

Alam Sekitar
Malaysia
Sdn Bhd
ALS
Technichem
(M) Sdn Bhd
(“ALS”)
PICORP

Progressive Impact
Technology Sdn Bhd
(PITECH)
PITECH

Provision of environment
consulting services to
PITECH
Provision of lab testing
services to PITECH

NIL

Foxboro (M) Sdn
Bhd (“Foxboro”)

PICORP

Untung
Aquaculture Sdn
Bhd (“Untung
Aqua”)

Rental of office space of
337,884
16,563 sq. ft at No. 21
Jalan Astaka U8/84, Bukit
Jelutong Business &
Technology Centre, 40150
Shah Alam to Foxboro
Rental of 22.5 acres of
22,800
leasehold land located at
Lot No. PT 7605, Mukim of
Lumut, Manjung, Perak to
Untung Aqua

Progressive
Uni San
International
Sdn Bhd
Progressive
Uni San (M)
Sdn Bhd

Uni San
Pol-Company Ltd

Provision of waste water
treatment solution by
Uni San

Nil

Uni San
Pol-Company Ltd

Provision of waste water
treatment solution by
Uni San

732,663
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Interested Directors /
Major Shareholders and
persons connected to
them

34,162

Foxboro is a company in
which Haji Zaid and Hajjah
Zaidah are Directors with
shareholdings of 51% held
through PITECH.
Untung Aqua is a company
in which Haji Zaid and
Hajjah Zaidah are Directors
with 66.67% interest in
Untung Aqua held through
Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn
Bhd.

Additional Compliance Information
(cont’d)

5.

Depository Receipt Programme
During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the company did not sponsor any Depository Receipt
programme.

6.

Imposition of Sanctions / Penalties
There have been no sanctions and / or penalties imposed on the Company and its subsidiaries, Directors or
Management by the regulatory bodies.

7.

Profit Guarantee
There were no profit guarantee given in respect of the Company for the financial year.

8.

Material Contracts
There were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries involving Directors’ and
major shareholders’ interest during the financial year during ended 31 December 2011.

9.

Revaluation of Landed Properties
The Group has adopted a revaluation policy where it will revalue its landed properties once in every 5 years.

10. Non Audit Fees
The amount of non-audit fees incurred for services rendered to the Company and its subsidiaries during the
financial year amounted to not more than RM30,000 by the Company’s auditors or a company affiliated to the
auditor’s firm.

11.	Variation in Results
There was a variance of RM 2,157,701 between the audited profit after tax and minority interest of RM11,391,796
in the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 as compared with RM9,234,095
previously announced in the Unaudited 4th Quarterly Results. This has resulted in a deviation of 23%.
The reconciliation is detailed as below:
RM'000

RM’000

Unaudited net profit after taxation and minority interest for the financial year
ended 31 December 2011 announced on 29 February 2012
(i)
(ii)

Re-instatement of impairment of investment in an associate *
Re-instatement of share of profit from 2008 to 2011 due to item (i)
above
(iii) Increase in share of loss of an associate
(iv) Reversal of prior years’ provision of tax in a subsidiary
(v) Increase in profit attributable to Non-controlling interest
(vi) Others

9,234
1,510
336
(53)
509
(200)
56
2,158

Audited net profit after tax and minority interest for the financial year ended 31
December 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Directors’ Report
The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Group and of the
Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal activities
The principal activities of the Company are that of investment holding and the provision of management and administrative
services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 15(a) to the financial statements.
There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.

Results

Profit net of tax

Group

Company

RM

RM

17,293,915

5,161,802

11,391,796

5,161,802

5,902,119

-

17,293,915

5,161,802

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Minority interests

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the
financial statements.
In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were
not been substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature other than the effect arising
from the impairment loss in associate of RM2,118,573 in respect of the Company and RM2,631,971 in respect of the Group as
disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (cont’d)
Dividends
The amount of dividends paid by the Company since 31 December 2010 were as follows:
RM
In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2010 as reported in the
directors’ report of that year:
Final dividend of 0.10 sen per share less 25% taxation, on 658,000,000
ordinary shares, approved by shareholders on 23 May 2011 and paid on 6 June 2011

493,503

In respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2011:
Interim dividend of 0.51 sen per share less 25% taxation, on 658,000,000
ordinary shares, declared on 17 November 2011 and paid on 16 December 2011

2,500,021
2,993,524

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2011, of 0.61 sen
per share less 25% taxation on 658,000,000 ordinary shares, amounting to a net dividend payable of RM3,000,000 (0.46 sen net
per ordinary share) will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The financial statements for the current financial year do not
reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation
of retained profits for the next financial year ending 31 December 2012.

Directors
The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this report are:
Haji Zaid bin Haji Abdullah
Hajjah Zaidah bt Haji Mohd Salleh
Haji Hassan bin Hussain
Professor Dato’ Dr. Mohd Sham bin Mohd Sani
Lee Weng Chong
Datuk Abdul Hamid bin Sawal

(appointed on 23 May 2011)

Dato’ Mohamed bin Hashim

(retired on 23 May 2011)
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Directors’ Report (cont’d)
Directors’ benefits
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the
Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefits (other than a
benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary
of a full time employee of the Company as shown in Note 7 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the
Company or a related corporation with any director or with a firm of which the director is a member or with a company in which
the director has a substantial financial interest, except as disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements.

Directors’ interests
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interest of directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares
in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year were as follows:
Number of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
1.1.2011

Acquired

Sold

31.12.2011

The Company
Direct interest:
Haji Zaid bin Haji Abdullah*

40,725,100

5,000,000

-

45,725,100

Hajjah Zaidah bt Haji Mohd Salleh*

8,668,000

-

-

8,668,000

Lee Weng Chong

1,050,000

-

-

1,050,000

420,000

-

-

420,000

4,500,000

-

-

4,500,000

308,628,500

-

-

308,628,500

16,000,000

-

-

16,000,000

Professor Dato’ Dr. Mohd Sham bin Mohd Sani
Haji Hassan bin Hussain
Indirect interest:
Haji Zaid bin Haji Abdullah and
Hajjah Zaidah bt Haji Mohd Salleh
Haji Hassan bin Hussain
* Both of these directors are in a spousal relationship
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Directors’ Report (cont’d)
Directors’ interests (cont’d.)
Number of ordinary shares of RM1.00 each
1.1.2011

Acquired

Sold

31.12.2011

Subsidiary - ALS Technichem (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Direct:
Haji Zaid bin Haji Abdullah

10,000

-

1,000

9,000

All the directors, by virtue of their interest in the shares of the Company, are deemed interested in the shares of all the Company’s
subsidiaries to the extent the Company has an interest.

Other statutory information
(a)	Before the statements of comprehensive income and statements of financial position of the Group and of the Company
were made out, the directors took reasonable steps:
(i)	to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of
provision for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts written off and that
adequate provision had been made for doubtful debts; and
(ii)	to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the accounting records
in the ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to
realise.
(b)

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:
(i)	it necessary to write off any bad debts or the amount of the provision for doubtful debts of the Group and of the
Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and
(ii) 	the values attributed to current assets in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company
misleading.

(c)	At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render
adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or
inappropriate.
(d)	At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or
financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements
misleading.
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Directors’ Report (cont’d)
Other statutory information (cont’d.)
(e)

As at the date of this report, there does not exist:
(i)	any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year
which secures the liabilities of any other person; or
(ii)	any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial
year.

(f)	In the opinion of the directors:
(i)	no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of
twelve months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Group and of the
Company to meet its obligations when they fall due; and
(ii)	no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the
financial year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the
Group and of the Company for the financial year in which this report is made.

Auditors
The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 30 April 2012.

Haji Zaid bin Haji Abdullah

Haji Hassan bin Hussain

Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
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Statement by Directors

Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

We, Haji Zaid bin Haji Abdullah and Haji Hassan bin Hussain, being two of the directors of Progressive Impact Corporation
Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 51 to 126
are drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2011 and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended.
The information set out in Note 38 to the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Guidance on Special
Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 30 April 2012.

Haji Zaid bin Haji Abdullah

Haji Hassan bin Hussain

Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia

Statutory declaration

Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965
I, Hamsiah binti Khalid, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Progressive Impact Corporation
Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set out on pages 51 to 126 are in my
opinion, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the provisions
of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
the abovenamed Hamsiah binti Khalid
at Kuala Lumpur in Wilayah Persekutuan
on 30 April 2012

Before me,
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Hamsiah binti Khalid

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of Progressive Impact Corporation Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the financial statements
We have audited the financial statements of Progressive Impact Corporation Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2011 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements
of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 51 to 126.
Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia and for such internal control as the
directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal controls relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the
Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as
at 31 December 2011 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (cont’d)
to the members of Progressive Impact Corporation Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:
(a)	In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and its
subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
(b)	We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of which we have not acted
as auditors, which are indicated in Note 15(a) to the financial statements, being financial statements that have been
included in the consolidated financial statements.
(c)	We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the financial statements
of the Company are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.
(d)	The auditors’ reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries were not subject to any qualification and did not
include any comment required to be made under Section 174(3) of the Act.
Other matters
The supplementary information set out in Note 38 on page 126 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on
Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and
the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Ernst & Young

Nik Rahmat Kamarulzaman bin Nik Ab. Rahman

AF: 0039

No. 1759/02/14(J)

Chartered Accountants

Chartered Accountants

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
30 April 2012

50

PROGRESSIVE IMPACT CORPORATION BERHAD | annual report 2011

Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Group
Note

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

87,852,366

4

Other income

5

1,716,885

2,301,205

1,606,566

3,246,231

Staff costs

6

(18,856,484)

(17,583,352)

(3,954,246)

(3,429,331)

(21,462,814)

(22,208,395)

(3,898,394)

(4,123,767)

(323,752)

(369,348)

(20,252,602)

(36,236,449)

(3,236,989)

(16,534,368)

25,098,957

6,100,246

5,811,579

(163,482)

-

10,519

-

-

1,133,782

-

-

5,811,579

Raw materials and consumables used
Depreciation and amortisation
Other operating expenses
Profit/(loss) from operations
Finance costs

8

(231,264)

Share of (loss)/profit of associate

83,951,004

11,720,000

Revenue

Profit/(loss) before tax

9

24,867,693

7,244,547

Income tax expense

10

(7,573,778)

(6,679,451)

Profit/(loss) net of tax

17,293,915

16,923,334

-

(649,777)

-

(163,482)
(3,470,667)

565,096

5,161,802

(3,634,149)

(239,158)

455,309

-

-

227,749

813,999

64,813

428,156

1,269,308

64,813

428,156

1,834,404

5,226,615

(3,205,993)

11,391,796

1,912,033

5,161,802

(3,634,149)

5,902,119

(1,346,937)

-

-

17,293,915

565,096

5,161,802

(3,634,149)

11,390,045

3,044,748

5,226,615

(3,205,993)

Other comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation
Revaluation of land and building

12

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

(11,409)

Total comprehensive income for the year

17,282,506

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest

5,892,461

(1,210,344)

-

-

17,282,506

1,834,404

5,226,615

(3,205,993)

1.7

0.3

Earnings per share (sen) attributable to owners of the parent
Basic/Diluted

11

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2011

Group
Note

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Assets
Non current assets
Property, plant and equipment

12

26,368,639

26,712,638

4,544,377

4,727,782

Concession asset under construction

13

-

-

-

-

Investment properties

14

5,585,497

5,357,748

9,243,578

9,015,830

Investment in subsidiaries

15

-

-

3,153,524

3,573,522

Investment in associate

16

1,792,134

4,141,971

1,510,000

3,628,573

Prepaid land lease payment

17

350,000

375,000

350,000

375,000

Intangible assets

18

13,985,022

13,985,022

-

-

Deferred tax assets

29

1,096,897

486,304

-

-

49,178,189

51,058,683

18,801,479

21,320,707

19

1,595,291

1,403,832

-

-

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

20

39,269,318

33,435,824

48,752,060

41,514,199

Investment in unit trusts

21

29,179

25,982

29,179

25,982

Cash and bank balances

22

45,347,308

37,470,737

7,756,972

11,454,209

86,241,096

72,336,375

56,538,211

52,994,390

135,419,285

123,395,058

75,339,690

74,315,097

Total assets

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2011

Group
Note

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Short term borrowings

24

939,565

822,234

-

-

Trade and other payables

23

15,126,048

13,221,106

1,110,977

834,132

1,626,961

1,058,538

-

-

17,692,574

15,101,878

1,110,977

834,132

68,548,522

57,234,497

55,427,234

52,160,258

124,779

1,652,420

Taxation

Net current assets
Non current liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation

25

124,779

1,652,420

Deferred tax liabilities

29

3,618,994

3,657,146

981,852

939,554

3,743,773

5,309,566

1,106,631

2,591,974

21,436,347

20,411,444

2,217,608

3,426,106

113,982,938

102,983,614

73,122,082

70,888,991

65,800,000

65,800,000

65,800,000

65,800,000

170,290

170,290

170,290

170,290

982,031

917,218

Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital

26

Share premium
Other reserves

27

2,579,114

2,590,523

Retained earnings

28

29,193,077

20,794,805

6,169,761

4,001,483

97,742,481

89,355,618

73,122,082

70,888,991

16,240,457

13,627,996

-

-

Total equity

113,982,938

102,983,614

73,122,082

70,888,991

Total equity and liabilities

135,419,285

123,395,058

75,339,690

74,315,097

Non-controlling interest

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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30

-

65,800,000

-

-

170,290

-

-

-

2,590,523

-

-

-

-

1,132,715

1,457,808

-

1,457,808

2,579,114

-

-

-

(11,409)

2,590,523

Other
reserves
RM
(Note 27)

20,794,805

(2,023,359)

(2,023,359)

-

-

1,912,033

20,906,131

(241,022)

21,147,153

29,193,077

(2,993,524)

(2,993,524)

-

11,391,796

20,794,805

Retained
earnings
RM
(Note 28)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

At 31 December 2010

Total transactions with owners

Dividends

-

Disposal of subsidiary

-

170,290

65,800,000
-

-

170,290

65,800,000
-

170,290

-

-

-

-

170,290

Share
premium
RM

65,800,000

-

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest

Transactions with owners

Total comprehensive income

Effect of adopting FRS 139

At 1 January 2010

At 31 December 2011

Total transactions with owners

-

-

65,800,000

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest
30

Note

Dividends

Transactions with owners

Total comprehensive income

At 1 January 2011

Group

Share
capital
RM
(Note 26)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Non-distributable
Distributable

89,355,618

(2,023,359)

(2,023,359)

-

-

3,044,748

88,334,229

(241,022)

88,575,251

97,742,481

(2,993,524)

(2,993,524)

-

11,380,387

89,355,618

Total
RM

Non-

13,627,996

(1,040,363)

-

(2,733,785)

1,693,422

(1,210,344)

15,878,703

(113,493)

15,992,196

16,240,457

(3,280,000)

-

(3,280,000)

5,892,461

13,627,996

controlling
interest
RM

102,983,614

(3,063,722)

(2,023,359)

(2,733,785)

1,693,422

1,834,404

104,212,932

(354,515)

104,567,447

113,982,938

(6,273,524)

(2,993,524)

(3,280,000)

17,272,848

102,983,614

Total
equity
RM

Statements of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Statements of Changes in Equity (cont’d)
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Non-distributable
Note
Company

Share

Share

Other

Retained

Total

capital

premium

reserves

earnings

equity

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

(Note 27)

(Note 28)

(Note 26)
At 1 January 2011

Distributable

65,800,000

170,290

917,218

4,001,483

70,888,991

-

-

64,813

5,161,802

5,226,615

-

-

-

(2,993,524)

(2,993,524)

-

-

-

(2,993,524)

(2,993,524)

At 31 December 2011

65,800,000

170,290

982,031

6,169,761

73,122,082

At 1 January 2010

65,800,000

170,290

489,062

9,707,821

76,167,173

Total comprehensive income
Transaction with owners
Dividends

30

Total transaction with owners

Effect of adopting FRS 139

2.3

Total comprehensive income

-

-

-

(48,830)

(48,830)

65,800,000

170,290

489,062

9,658,991

76,118,343

-

-

428,156

(3,634,149)

(3,205,993)

-

-

-

(2,023,359)

(2,023,359)

-

-

-

(2,023,359)

(2,023,359)

65,800,000

170,290

917,218

4,001,483

70,888,991

Transaction with owners
Dividends
Total transaction with owners
At 31 December 2010

30

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) before taxation

24,867,693

7,244,547

5,811,579

(163,482)

3,873,394

4,098,767

323,752

344,348

177,716

(1,133,782)

-

-

25,000

25,000

25,000

25,000

811,691

826,210

734,626

826,210

Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Share of loss/(profit) of associate
Amortisation of prepaid lease rental
Provision for retirement benefit obligations
Provision for impairment of concession assets under under
-

13,656,460

-

-

2,631,971

5,456,160

2,118,573

5,456,160

Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net

16,407

(240,365)

-

(182,363)

Net gains from fair value adjustment of investment properties

(227,749)

construction
Impairment loss on investment in associate

(Gain)/loss on disposal of investment in subsidiaries
Provision for doubtful debts

(1,247,622)

(86,415)

(2,332,954)

-

(63,103)

-

9,961,761

311,315

1,620,550

-

657,298

42,937

8,685

-

-

Finance cost

-

(10,519)

-

-

Gross dividends received

-

-

Net unrealised foreign exchange loss

Profit income from deposits
Investment written off
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes

(589,768)

(11,720,000)

(16,173,334)

(418,859)

-

(106,400)

-

-

420,000

-

31,940,607

29,822,129

(2,372,885)

(1,687,756)

(5,816,174)

(1,748,335)

(8,345,754)

1,417,956

Working capital changes:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables

(191,459)

3,044,376

-

-

(Decrease)/increase in payables

(2,406,183)

(6,696,636)

276,843

(378,264)

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

23,526,791

24,421,534

(Increase)/decrease in inventories and work-in-progress

(648,064)

10,519

-

-

Taxation paid

(7,005,355)

(6,090,775)

-

-

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

16,521,436

18,341,278

Financing cost paid
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-

(10,441,796)

(10,441,796)

(648,064)

Statement of Cash Flows (cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

(3,488,440)

405,930

-

204,050

(3,926,200)

(53,932)

(434,687)

(2)

(339,167)

Net cash outflow on acqusition of a subsidiary

-

(339,167)

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries

-

1,003

-

1,003

Net dividend received

-

-

12,330,000

12,820,000

Profits received from deposits
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities

589,768
(2,898,672)

418,859

(275,716)

106,400

(3,439,575)

12,000,350

12,357,599

117,331

2,466,702

-

-

-

(1,644,468)

(2,262,267)

-

(2,993,524)

(2,023,359)

Cash flows from financing activities
Drawdown of borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Dividend paid

(2,993,524)

(2,023,359)

Dividend to non-controlling interest

(2,870,000)

-

Net cash used in financing activities

(5,746,193)

(1,201,125)

(5,255,791)

(2,023,359)

7,876,571

13,700,578

(3,697,237)

9,686,176

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

37,470,737

23,770,159

11,454,209

1,768,033

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

45,347,308

37,470,737

7,756,972

11,454,209

45,347,308

37,470,737

7,756,972

11,454,209

45,347,308

37,470,737

7,756,972

11,454,209

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

-

-

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances (Note 22)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 December 2011

1.

Corporate information

	The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and is listed on the Main
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. The registered office of the Company is located at Tingkat 2, No. 19, Jalan
Astaka U8/84, Bukit Jelutong Business and Technology Centre, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.
	The principal activities of the Company are that of investment holding and the provision of management and administrative
services to its subsidiaries.
	The principal activities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 15(a).
	There have been no significant changes in the nature of these principal activities during the financial year.
	The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with the resolution of the
directors on 30 April 2012.

2.

Significant accounting policies
2.1

Basis of preparation

		The financial statements of the Group and of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia.
		The financial statements have been prepared under the historical basis (except for the revaluation of freehold land
and building included within property, plant and equipment and investment properties that have been measured
at their fair values).
		

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM).

		During the financial year, the Company adopted new FRSs, amendment to FRSs and IC Interpretation as disclosed
in Note 2.3 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a)

Basis of consolidation

			The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at the reporting date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are prepared for the same reporting date as the Company.
Consistent accounting policies are applied to like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
			All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intragroup transactions are eliminated in full.
			Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for by applying the purchase method. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. Adjustments to those fair values relating to previously held interests
are treated as a revaluation and recognised in other comprehensive income. The cost of a business
combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of the assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. Any excess of the cost of business combination over the Group’s share in the net
fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities is recorded
as goodwill on the statement of financial position. The accounting policy for goodwill is set out in Note
2.2(f). Any excess of the Group’s share in the net fair value of the acquired subsidiary’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of business combination is recognised as income in profit
or loss on the date of acquisition. When the Group acquires a business, embedded derivatives separated
from the host contract by the acquiree are reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination
results in a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract.
			Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
		

(b)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

			Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not held by
the Group and are presented separately in profit or loss of the Group and within equity in the consolidated
statements of financial position, separately from parent shareholders’ equity. Transactions with noncontrolling interests are accounted for using the entity concept method, whereby, transactions with noncontrolling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners. On acquisition of non-controlling
interests, the difference between the consideration and book value of the share of the net assets acquired
is recognised directly in equity. Gain or loss on disposal to non-controlling interests is recognised directly
in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(c)

			

Foreign currency
(i)

Functional and presentation currency

				The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM), which is also the
Company’s functional currency.
			

(ii)

Foreign currency transactions

				Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the
Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at
exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost
are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
				Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at the reporting date are recognised in profit or loss except for exchange differences arising
on monetary items that form part of the Group’s net investment in foreign operations, which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency
translation reserve in equity. The foreign currency translation reserve is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss of the Group on disposal of the foreign operation.
				Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for the differences arising on the translation of nonmonetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange
differences arising from such non-monetary items are also recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(c)

			

Foreign currency (cont’d.)
(iii)

Foreign operations

				The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into RM at the rate of exchange ruling
at the reporting date and income and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. The exchange differences arising on the translation are taken directly to other
comprehensive income. On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under foreign currency translation reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the profit or loss.
				Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the
foreign operations and translated at the closing rate at the reporting date.
		

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

			All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
			Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment and furniture and fixtures are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if
the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. Freehold land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation
on buildings and impairment losses recognised after the date of the revaluation. Valuations are performed
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the fair value
of the freehold land and buildings at the reporting date.
			Any revaluation surplus is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same
asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A
revaluation deficit is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on
the same asset carried in the asset revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(d)

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d.)

			Any accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. The revaluation surplus
included in the asset revaluation reserve in respect of an asset is transferred directly to retained earnings
on retirement or disposal of the asset.
			Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Depreciation is computed on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
			

Buildings			

2%-10%

			

Renovation

20%

			

Plant and machinery 12.5% - 20%

			

Motor vehicles		

20%

			

Office equipment		

20%

			

Furniture and fittings 20%

		

			Assets under construction included in plant and equipment are not depreciated as these assets are not yet
available for use.
			The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
			The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
			An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in
the profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised.
		

(e)

Investment properties

			Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value which reflects market conditions at the
reporting date. Fair value is arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties and is performed by registered independent valuers having an appropriate recognised
professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being
valued. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included in
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(e)

Investment properties (cont’d.)

			A property interest under an operating lease is classified and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis when the Group holds it to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both.
Any such property interest under an operating lease classified as an investment property is carried at fair
value.
			Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or loss in
the year of retirement or disposal.
			Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair
value at the date of change in use. For a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property,
the property is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment
set out in Note 2.2 (d) up to the date of change in use.
		

(f)

			

Intangible assets
Goodwill

			Goodwill is initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
			For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired is allocated, from the acquisition date,
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.
			The cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually and
whenever there is an indication that the cash-generating unit may be impaired, by comparing the carrying
amount of the cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill, with the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised for goodwill
are not reversed in subsequent periods.
			Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that cash-generating
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed
of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative fair values of the operations disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(f)

Intangible assets (cont’d.)

			Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operation on or after 1 January
2006 are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional
currency of the foreign operations and translated in accordance with the accounting policy set out in Note
2.2 (c).
			Goodwill and fair value adjustments which arose on acquisitions of foreign operation before 1 January
2006 are deemed to be assets and liabilities of the Company and are recorded in RM at the rates prevailing
at the date of acquisition.
		

(g)

Impairment of non-financial assets

			The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Group
makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
			An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU”)).
			In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to those units or groups of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
			

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

			An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously.
Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(h)

Subsidiaries

			A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
			In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment losses.
		

(i)

Associates

			An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a joint venture, in which the Group has significant
influence. An associate is equity accounted for from the date the Group obtains significant influence until
the date the Group ceases to have significant influence over the associate.
			The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity
method, the investment in associates is measured in the statement of financial position at cost plus postacquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associates. Goodwill relating to associates
is included in the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the associate’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of the investment
is excluded from the carrying amount of the investment and is instead included as income in the
determination of the Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss for the period in which the investment
is acquired.
			When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
			After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associates. The Group determines at each
reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount in profit or loss.
			The financial statements of the associates are prepared as of the same reporting date as the Company.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the
Group.
			In the Company’s separate financial statements, investments in associates are stated at cost less
impairment losses. On disposal of such investments, the difference between net disposal proceeds and
their carrying amounts is included in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(j)

Financial assets

			Financial assets are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the Group and
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
			When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
			The Group and the Company determines the classification of their financial assets at initial recognition,
and the categories include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, heldto-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
			

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

				Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss if they are held
for trading or are designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets held for trading are
derivatives (including separated embedded derivatives) or financial assets acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near term.
				Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured
at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Net
gains or net losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss do not include exchange
differences, interest and dividend income. Exchange differences, interest and dividend income on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as part of other losses or other income.
				Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-current.
Financial assets that is held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current whereas
financial assets that is not held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or noncurrent based on the settlement date.
			

(ii)

Loans and receivables

				Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables.
				Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
				Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later
than 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(j)

			

Financial assets (cont’d.)
(iii)

Held-to-maturity investments

				Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-tomaturity when the Group has positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity.
				Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the heldto-maturity investments are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
				Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets, except for those having maturity
within 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as current.
				The Group and the Company did not have any held-to-maturity investments during the year ended
31 December 2011.
			

(iv)

Available-for-sale financial assets

				Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are designated as available for sale or
are not classified in any of the three preceding categories.
				After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains
or losses from changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments
and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group and the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
				Investment in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less impairment loss.
				Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they are expected to
be realised within 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(j)

Financial assets (cont’d.)

			A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has
expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.
			Regular way of purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All
regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e.,
the date that the Group and the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
		

(k)

Impairment of financial assets

			The Group and the Company assess at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset is impaired.
			

(i)

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost

				To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has
been incurred, the Group and the Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. For
certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based on
similar risk characteristics. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group’s and the Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
				If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
				The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable becomes uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(k)

			

Impairment of financial assets (cont’d.)
(i)

Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost (cont’d.)

				If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does
not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in profit or
loss.
			

(ii)

Unquoted equity securities carried at cost

				If there is objective evidence (such as significant adverse changes in the business environment
where the issuer operates, probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the issuer)
that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
			

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

				Significant or prolonged decline in fair value below cost, significant financial difficulties of the issuer
or obligor, and the disappearance of an active trading market are considerations to determine
whether there is objective evidence that investment securities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are impaired.
				If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between its
cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.
				Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments are not reversed in profit or loss in
the subsequent periods. Increase in fair value, if any, subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss in profit or
loss.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(l)

Cash and cash equivalents

			Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. These also include bank overdrafts that form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.
		

(m)

Construction contracts

			Where the outcome of a construction contract can be reliably estimated, contract revenue and contract
costs are recognised as revenue and expenses respectively by using the stage of completion method.
The stage of completion is measured by reference to the proportion of contract costs incurred for work
performed to date to the estimated total contract costs.
			Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
			When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
			Contract revenue comprises the initial amount of revenue agreed in the contract and variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that it is probable that they will result in revenue and
they are capable of being reliably measured.
			When the total of costs incurred on construction contracts plus recognised profits (less recognised losses)
exceeds progress billings, the balance is classified as amount due from customers on contracts. When
progress billings exceed costs incurred plus, recognised profits (less recognised losses), the balance is
classified as amount due to customers on contracts.
		

(n)

Inventories

			Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition are accounted for as follows:
			

-	Raw materials: purchase costs on a first-in first-out basis.

			

-	Finished goods and work-in-progress: costs of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. These costs are assigned on a firstin first-out basis.

			Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(o)

Provisions

			Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.
			Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using
a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
		

(p)

Financial liabilities

			Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability.
			Financial liabilities, within the scope of FRS 139, are recognised in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Group and the Company become a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument. Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss or other financial liabilities.
			

(i)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

				Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
				Financial liabilities held for trading include derivatives entered into by the Group and the Company
that do not meet the hedge accounting criteria. Derivative liabilities are initially measured at fair
value and subsequently stated at fair value, with any resultant gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. Net gains or losses on derivatives include exchange differences.
				The Group and the Company have not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through
profit or loss.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(p)

			

Financial liabilities (cont’d.)
(ii)

Other financial liabilities

				The Group’s and the Company’s other financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables
and loans and borrowings.
				Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
				Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
				For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised, and through the amortisation process.
			A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
		

(q)

Borrowing costs

			Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of that asset. Capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when
the activities to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and
borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalised until the assets are substantially completed
for their intended use or sale.
			All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group and the Company incurred in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

72

PROGRESSIVE IMPACT CORPORATION BERHAD | annual report 2011

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

2.

Significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(r)

Share capital

			An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group and the
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.
			Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction
costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in
the period in which they are declared.
		

(s)

			

Employee benefits
(i)

Defined contribution plans

				The Group participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries
in which it has operations. The Malaysian companies in the Group make contributions to the
Employee Provident Fund in Malaysia, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to
defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related service is performed.
			

(ii)

Defined benefit plan

				The Group operates an unfunded, defined benefit Retirement Benefit Scheme (“the Scheme”) for
its eligible employees. The Group’s obligations under the Scheme are determined based on the
estimated amount of benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior years. That is benefit is discounted using the Projected Unit Credit Method in order to
determine its present value. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as income or expense over
the expected average remaining working lives of the participating employees when the cumulative
unrecognised actuarial gains or losses for the Scheme exceed 10% of the present value of the
defined benefit obligation. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the
benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the amended benefits become vested.
				The amount recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligations adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and unrecognised past service
cost. Any assets resulting from this calculation is limited to the net total of any unrecognised pass
service cost, and present value of any economic benefits in the form or refunds or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.
				Actuarial gains and losses arises mainly from changes in actuarial assumptions and differences
between actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred. Such gains and losses are credited
or charged to the income statement over the expected average remaining working lives of the
eligible employees participating in the Scheme.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(t)

			

Leases
(i)

As lessee

				Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the
leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct
costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss. Contingent
rents, if any, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
				Leased assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life and the lease term.
				Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
			

(ii)

As lessor

				Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
bases as rental income.
		

(u)

Revenue

			Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable.
			

(i)

Sale of goods

				Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon the transfer of significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the goods to the customer. Revenue is not recognised to the extent where there
are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the
possible return of goods.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(u)

			

Revenue (cont’d.)
(ii)

Rendering of services

				Revenue from the installation of fire prevention equipment is recognised by reference to the stage
of completion at the reporting date. Stage of completion is determined by reference to labour hours
incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours for each contract. Where the
contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised to the extent of the expenses
recognised that are recoverable.
			

(iii)

Construction contracts

				Revenue from construction contracts is accounted for by the stage of completion method as
described in Note 2.2 (m).
			

(iv)

Interest income

				Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
			

(v)

Management fees

				Management fees are recognised when services are rendered.
			

(vi)

Dividend income

				Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.
			

(vii)

Rental income

				Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. The aggregate costs
of incentives provided to lessees are recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term
on a straight-line basis.
		

(v)

			

Income taxes
(i)

Current tax

				Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
				Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(v)

			

Income taxes (cont’d.)
(ii)

Deferred tax

				Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
				Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:
				

-	where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

				

-	in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

				Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:
				

-	where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

				

-	in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

				The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.2

		

Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
(v)

			

Income taxes (cont’d.)
(ii)

Deferred tax (cont’d.)

				Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
				Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination
is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.
				Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
			

(iii)

Sales tax

				Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except:
				

-	Where the sales tax incurred in a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

				
		

(w)

-	Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

Contingencies

			A contingent liability or asset is a possible obligation or asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s) not
wholly within the control of the Group.
			Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statements of financial position of the Group.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.3

Changes in accounting policies

		The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows:
		On 1 January 2011, the Group and the Company adopted the following new and amended FRS and IC Interpretations
mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
		

Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2010

		

FRS 1

First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards (revised)

		

FRS 3

Business Combinations (revised)

		

FRS 7

Disclosures for first-time adopters

		

FRS 127

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

		

Amendment to FRS 5

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

		

Amendments to FRS 138

Intangible Assets

		

IC 12

Service Concession Agreements

		

IC 16

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

		

IC 17

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owner

		

IC 18

Transfer of Assets from Customers

		

Amendments to IC 9

Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

		

Improvements to FRSs 2010

		

Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2011

		

Amendments to FRS 1

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters

		

Amendments to FRS 1

Limited Exemption from Comparative

		

Amendments to FRS 2

Share-based payment

		

Amendments to FRS 2

Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions

		

Amendments to FRS 7

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instrument

		

Amendments to FRS 132

Financial Instruments: Presentation

		

IC 4

Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.3

Changes in accounting policies (cont’d.)

		The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations have no material impact on the financial
performance or position of the Group and the Company except for the followings:
		

i.

IC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

			Arising from the adoption of IC 4, certain arrangements which meet specific criteria as set out in IC 4,
should be accounted for as leases in accordance with FRS 117 Leases even though the arrangements do
not take the legal form of a lease. In particular, where a property, plant and equipment is determined to
contain an embedded finance lease arrangement, the accounting treatment involves the derecognition
of the tangible asset and the recognition of future minimum lease payments due from the customer,
equivalent to the net investment in the lease, under receivables.
			The adoption of IC 4 which has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the transitional
provisions of the standard has no significant impact on the Group and the Company’s reported income or
net assets.
		

ii.

Amendments to FRS 7 Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

			The amended standard requires enhanced disclosure about fair value measurements and liquidity risk.
Fair value measurements related to items recorded at fair value are to be disclosed by source of inputs
using three level fair value hierarchy (Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3), by class, for all financial instruments
recognised at fair value. A reconciliation between the beginning and ending balance for Level 3 fair value
measurements is required. Any significant transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy and the
reasons for those transfers need to be disclosed. The fair value measurement disclosures are presented
in Note 34.
2.4

Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

		At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, new and amended FRS and IC Interpretations
which were issued but not yet effective, for which the Group and the Company have not early adopted are as
follows:
		

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

		

Amendments to IC

		

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

Interpretations 19
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.4

		

Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective (cont’d.)
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

		

FRS 124

Related Party Disclosures

		

Amendments to FRS 7

Financial Instruments Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

		

Amendments to FRS 112

Deferred Tax - Recovery of Underlying Assets

		

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

		

Amendments to FRS 101

		

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

		

FRS 9

Presentation of Items of Other Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Financial Instruments

		

FRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

		

FRS 11

Joint Arrangements

		

FRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

		

FRS 13

Fair Value Measurement

		

Amendments to FRS 119

Employee Benefits

		

Amendments to FRS 127

Separate Financial Statements

		

Amendments to FRS 128

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011)

		The adoption of the above will have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group and the Company
in the period of initial application.
2.5

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS)

		On 19 November 2011, the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) issued a new MASB approved
accounting framework, the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS Framework).
		The MFRS Framework is to be applied by all Entities Other Than Private Entities for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2012, with the exception of entities that are within the scope of MFRS 141 Agriculture (MFRS
141) and IC Interpretation 15 Agreements for Construction of Real Estate (IC 15), including its parent, significant
investor and venturer (herein called ‘Transitioning Entities’).
		The Group and the Company will be required to prepare financial statements using MFRS Framework in its
first MFRS financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2012. In presenting its first MFRS financial
statements, the Group and the Company will be required to restate the comparative statements to amounts
reflecting the application of MFRS Framework. The majority of the adjustments required on transition will be
made, retrospectively, against opening retained profits.
		The Group and the Company has established a project team to plan and manage the adoption of the MFRS
Framework.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (cont’d.)
2.5

Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS) (cont’d.)

		The Group and the Company has not completed its assessment of the financial effects of the differences between
FRSs and accounting standards under the MFRS Framework. Accordingly, the financial performance and financial
position as disclosed in these financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 could be different if
prepared under the MFRS Framework.
		The Group and the Company considers that it is achieving its scheduled milestones and expects to be in a
position to fully comply with the requirements of the MFRS Framework for the financial year ending 31 December
2012.

3.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

	The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the
future.
3.1

Judgements made in applying accounting policies

		In the process of applying Group’s accounting policies, management does not make any significant judgements
which may have significant effort on the amount recognised in the financial statements.
3.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

		The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.
		

(i)

Impairment of goodwill

			Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill are allocated.
			When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Further details of the carrying value, the key assumptions applied in
the impairment assessment of goodwill and sensitivity analysis to changes in the assumptions are given
in Note 18.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates (cont’d.)
3.2

		

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (cont’d.)
(ii)

Revaluation of investment properties

			The Group carries its investment properties at fair value, with changes in fair values being recognised in
profit or loss. In addition, it measures land and buildings at revalued amounts with changes in fair value
being recognised in other comprehensive income. The Group engaged independent valuation specialists
to determine fair value as at 31 December 2011.
			The key assumptions used to determine the fair value of the investment property, are further explained in
Note 14.
		

(iii)

Construction contracts

			The Group recognises construction contracts revenue and expenses in the income statement by using the
stage of completion method. The stage of completion is determined by the proportion that construction
costs incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total construction costs.
			Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of completion, the extent of the construction
costs incurred, the estimated total construction revenue and costs, as well as the recoverability of the
construction projects. In making the judgement, the Group evaluates based on past experience and by
relying on the work of specialists.
		

(iv)

Impairment of loans and receivables

			The Group and the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset is impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Group
and the Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments. The carrying amount of the Group and the
Company’s loans and receivable at the reporting date is disclosed in Note 20.

4.

Revenue
Group
2011
RM
Provision of services

2011
RM

85,980,366

82,597,818

2010
RM
-

-

1,872,000

1,353,186

-

-

Dividend income from subsidiaries

-

-

11,720,000

16,173,334

Management fees from subsidiaries

-

-

-

750,000

87,852,366

83,951,004

11,720,000

16,923,334

Sale of goods

82

Company
2010
RM
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5.

Other income
Group

Rental income from investment properties

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

398,684

404,934

696,104

702,354

227,749

1,247,622

227,749

2,332,954

Net gains from fair value adjustment of
investment properties

6.

Interest income

589,768

418,859

275,716

106,400

Others

500,684

229,790

406,997

104,523

1,716,885

2,301,205

1,606,566

3,246,231

Staff costs
Group

Salaries, bonus and other emoluments
Social security costs

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

15,801,731

14,648,991

2,530,674

2,151,691

109,329

162,281

7,946

8,597

1,487,540

1,341,507

491,492

361,350

Pension costs:
- defined contribution plan
- defined benefit plan
Other staff related expenses

811,691

826,210

811,691

826,210

646,193

604,363

112,443

81,483

18,856,484

17,583,352

3,954,246

3,429,331

	Included in staff costs of the Group and of the Company are executive directors’ and non-executive directors’ remuneration
amounting to RM3,065,016 (2010: RM2,900,685) and RM3,008,016 (2010: RM2,798,685) respectively as further disclosed
in Note 7.
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7.

Directors’ remuneration
The details of remuneration receivable by directors of the Company during the year are as follows:
Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Executive:
Salaries and other emoluments

1,432,000

1,331,754

1,432,000

1,331,754

Pension costs:
- defined contribution plan

264,480

251,653

264,480

251,653

- defined benefit plan

811,691

826,210

811,691

826,210

79,000

72,000

55,000

48,000

116,000

-

116,000

-

76,619

93,068

76,619

93,068

2,779,790

2,574,685

2,755,790

2,550,685

Fees
Bonus
Benefits-in-kind

Non-executive:
Fees

118,226

126,000

100,226

108,000

Other remuneration

167,000

200,000

152,000

140,000

285,226

326,000

252,226

248,000

3,065,016

2,900,685

3,008,016

2,798,685

Total

	The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year fell within the following
bands is analysed below:
Number of Directors
2011

2010

Executive directors:
Below RM500,000

-

-

RM500,001 - RM1,000,000

1

-

Above RM1,000,000

1

2

Non-Executive directors:
Below RM 50,000 *

3

1

RM50,001 - RM100,000

2

2

RM100,001 - RM150,000

-

1

7

6

* During the year, a non-executive director retired and new non-executive director was appointed.
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8.

Finance costs
Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Interest expense on:
Hire purchase
Net interest expense

-

(10,519)

-

-

-

(10,519)

-

-

	In prior year, borrowing cost capitalised in the qualifying assets arose from a term loan has been calculated by applying
a capitalisation rate of 8.50% per annum.

9.

Profit/(loss) before tax
Profit/(loss) before tax is stated after charging/(crediting):
Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

145,000

119,000

35,000

30,000

-

62,956

-

-

32,000

27,300

32,000

27,300

16,407

(240,365)

-

(182,364)

42,937

209,982

-

159

Auditors’ remuneration Statutory audits
- company’s auditors
- other auditors
Other services
- Company’s auditors
Loss/(gain) on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange loss
- realised
- unrealised

-

8,685

-

-

Lease rentals

105,772

165,334

-

-

Provision of doubtful debts:
- trade
- non-trade

311,315

963,252

-

-

-

657,298

-

657,298
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9.

Profit/(loss) before tax (cont’d.)
Group

Provision for retirement benefit obligations
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

811,691

826,210

811,691

826,210

3,873,394

4,098,767

323,572

344,348

25,000

25,000

25,000

25,000

35,228

35,928

35,228

35,928

Direct operating expenses of revenue generated
from investment properties

-

(182,824)

-

9,961,761

2,631,971

5,456,160

2,118,573

5,456,160

Rental of equipment

124,711

35,083

6,600

7,920

Rental of premises

394,200

486,202

-

-

(Gain)/loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Impairment loss on investment in associate

10. Taxation
Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Income tax:
Malaysian income tax

6,374,575

5,759,367

-

3,437,174

Foreign income tax

1,057,500

922,498

-

-

7,432,075

6,681,865

-

3,437,174

536,305

(699,930)

387,179

(586,201)

7,968,380

5,981,935

387,179

2,850,973

Over/(under) provision in prior years:
Malaysian income tax

Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Deferred tax (Note 29):
Relating to origination and reversal of
temporary differences
Under/(over) provision in prior years

(7,614)

633,287

42,959

626,048

(386,988)

64,229

219,639

(6,354)

(394,602)

697,516

262,598

619,694

7,573,778

6,679,451

649,777

3,470,667

Income tax expense
recognised in profit or loss
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10. Taxation (cont’d.)
	Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) of the estimated assessable
profit for the year.
	Taxation for foreign subsidiaries are calculated at the current rates prevailing in each respective countries.
	A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax
expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:
Group

Profit/(loss) before tax

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

24,867,693

7,244,547

5,811,579

(163,482)

6,216,923

1,811,137

1,452,895

(40,871)

275,025

41,615

-

-

(320,599)

(400,000)

Taxation at Malaysian
statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%)
Effect of different tax rate in other countries
Effect of income not subject to tax
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Effect of share of result of associate

(2,966,800)

-

1,293,904

5,583,938

1,556,864

4,104,093

-

283,446

387,179

-

-

-

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
unabsorbed capital allowance

(60,896)

(4,984)

Over provision of income tax in prior years

512,905

(699,930)

-

(586,201)

(Over)/under provision of deferred taxation

(343,484)

64,229

219,639

(6,354)

6,679,451

649,777

3,470,667

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

7,573,778

11. Earnings per share
(a)

Basic

		Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the number of ordinary shares in issue held by the Company as at the date of the
financial statement.
2011
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (RM)
Number of ordinary shares in issue (‘000)
Basic earnings per share (sen)

2010

11,391,796

1,912,033

658,000

658,000

1.7

0.3
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11. Earnings per share (cont’d.)
(b)

Diluted

		For the current year, there are no shares in issuance which will have a dilutive effect to the earnings per share of
the Group.

12. Property, plant and equipment
At valuation

At cost
Office
equipment

Land and

Plant and

Motor

and furniture

buildings

machinery

vehicles

and fittings

Total

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

(Note a)
Group
2011
Cost or valuation
At 1.1.2011
Revaluation surplus
Additions
Disposals
Exchange differences
At 31.12.2011

13,541,581

47,689,877

5,356,476

11,370,219

77,958,153

86,415

-

-

-

86,415

-

2,979,247

43,450

465,743

3,488,440

-

(181,274)

-

(91,539)

(272,813)

11,424

-

2,405

23,858

37,687

13,639,420

50,487,850

5,402,331

11,768,281

81,297,882

1,579,262

36,999,435

2,821,641

9,845,177

51,245,515

134,602

2,368,204

702,262

668,326

3,873,394

-

(129,005)

-

(71,778)

(200,783)

Accumulated depreciation
At 1.1.2011
Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange differences
At 31.12.2011

30

-

1,362

9,725

11,117

1,713,894

39,238,634

3,525,265

10,451,450

54,929,243

11,925,526

11,249,216

1,877,066

1,316,831

26,368,639

Net carrying amount
At 31.12.2011
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12. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d.)
At valuation

At cost
Office
equipment

Land and

Plant and

Motor

and furniture

buildings

machinery

vehicles

and fittings

Total

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

(Note a)
Group (cont’d.)
2010
Cost or valuation
10,455,453

47,641,653

5,236,043

10,046,717

73,379,866

Revaluation surplus

At 1.1.2010

1,656,207

-

-

-

1,656,207

Additions

1,431,157

65,154

923,040

1,506,849

3,926,200

Disposals

-

(16,930)

(795,553)

(53,921)

(866,404)

(1,236)

-

(7,054)

(129,426)

(137,716)

13,541,581

47,689,877

5,356,476

11,370,219

77,958,153

1,414,020

35,656,912

2,181,586

8,775,559

48,028,077

165,314

1,356,166

1,420,279

1,157,008

4,098,767

Exchange differences
At 31.12.2010
Accumulated depreciation
At 1.1.2010
Charge for the year
Disposals
Exchange differences
At 31.12.2010

-

(13,643)

(773,866)

(44,870)

(832,379)

(72)

-

(6,358)

(42,520)

(48,950)

1,579,262

36,999,435

2,821,641

9,845,177

51,245,515

11,962,319

10,690,442

2,534,835

1,525,042

26,712,638

Net carrying amount
At 31.12.2010
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12. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d.)
At valuation

At cost
Office
equipment
Motor

and furniture

Land

Building

vehicles

and fittings

Total

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

(Note b)
Company
2011
Cost or valuation
At 1.1.2011
Revaluation surplus

506,291

3,904,088

1,222,645

1,774,326

7,407,350

-

86,415

-

-

86,415

Additions

-

-

-

53,932

53,932

Disposal

-

-

-

-

-

506,291

3,990,503

1,222,645

1,828,258

7,547,697

At 31.12.2011
Accumulated depreciation
At 1.1.2011

-

534,431

504,305

1,640,832

2,679,568

Charge for the year

-

78,083

188,109

57,560

323,752

Disposal

-

-

-

-

-

At 31.12.2011

-

612,514

692,414

1,698,392

3,003,320

506,291

3,377,989

530,231

129,866

4,544,377

Net carrying amount
At 31.12.2011
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12. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d.)
At valuation

At cost
Office
equipment
Motor

and furniture

Land

Building

vehicles

and fittings

Total

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

(Note b)
Company (cont’d.)
2010
Cost or valuation
At 1.1.2010

506,291

3,333,213

1,638,594

1,720,142

7,198,240

Revaluation surplus

-

570,875

-

-

570,875

Additions

-

-

379,604

55,083

434,687

Disposal

-

-

(795,553)

(899)

(796,452)

506,291

3,904,088

1,222,645

1,774,326

7,407,350

At 1.1.2010

-

467,767

1,097,293

1,544,925

3,109,985

Charge for the year

-

66,664

180,878

96,806

344,348

At 31.12.2010
Accumulated depreciation

Disposal

-

-

(773,866)

(899)

(774,765)

At 31.12.2010

-

534,431

504,305

1,640,832

2,679,568

506,291

3,369,657

718,340

133,494

4,727,782

Net carrying amount
At 31.12.2010
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12. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d.)
(a)

Group - land and buildings
At valuation
Freehold
land

Building

Total

RM

RM

RM

2011
At valuation:
At 1.1.2011

1,499,778

12,041,803

13,541,581

Revaluation surplus

-

86,415

86,415

Addition

-

-

-

Exchange differences

-

11,424

11,424

1,499,778

12,139,642

13,639,420

At 1.1.2011

-

1,579,262

1,579,262

Charge for the year

-

134,602

134,602

Exchange differences

-

30

30

At 31.12.2011

-

1,713,894

1,713,894

1,499,778

10,425,748

11,925,526

At 31.12.2011
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount
At 31.12.2011
2010
At valuation:
At 1.1.2010

1,499,778

8,955,675

10,455,453

Revaluation surplus

-

1,656,207

1,656,207

Addition

-

1,431,157

1,431,157

Exchange differences

-

(1,236)

(1,236)

1,499,778

12,041,803

13,541,581

At 1.1.2010

-

1,414,020

1,414,020

Charge for the year

-

165,314

165,314

Exchange differences

-

(72)

(72)

At 31.12.2010

-

1,579,262

1,579,262

1,499,778

10,462,541

11,962,319

At 31.12.2010
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount
At 31.12.2010
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12. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d.)
(b)

Company
Freehold
At valuation:

land

Total

RM

RM

At 1.1.2011/At 31.12.2011

506,291

506,291

At 1.1.2011/At 31.12.2011

506,291

506,291

At 1.1.2010/At 31.12.2010

506,291

506,291

At 1.1.2010/At 31.12.2010

506,291

506,291

2011

2010

		At 31 December 2011, had the revalued freehold land and building of the Group been carried at historical cost, the
net carrying amount of the properties would be as follows:
Group
2011
RM
Freehold land
Buildings

Company
2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

758,664

758,664

326,721

326,721

3,312,587

3,312,587

2,099,494

2,099,494

4,071,251

4,071,251

2,426,215

2,426,215

(c)	The costs of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use of the Group and of the Company are
RM27,444,250 (2010: RM25,931,530) and RM1,812,615 (2010: RM1,592,028) respectively.
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13. Concession asset under construction
Group
2011
RM

2010
RM

Cost
At 1 January

-

30,433,518

Disposal of subsidiaries

-

(29,150,162)

Additions

-

1,423,284

Exchange difference

-

(2,706,640)

At 31 December

-

-

	In prior year, concession asset under construction is pledged to a financial institution for term loan as referred to in Note
24 and interest expense capitalised during the financial year of the Group amounted to RM Nil, as disclosed in Note
8.

14. Investment properties
Group

Company

RM

RM

2011
At 1.1.2011
Net gains from fair value adjustments recognised in profit or loss
At 31.12.2011

5,357,748

9,015,830

227,749

227,748

5,585,497

9,243,578

2010

94

At 1.1.2010

4,110,124

6,682,874

Net gains from fair value adjustments recognised in profit or loss

1,247,624

2,332,956

At 31.12.2010

5,357,748

9,015,830
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14. Investment properties (cont’d.)
Included in the investment properties are:
Group

Company

2011 /2010

2011 /2010

RM

RM

Land

1,311,046

2,106,694

Buildings

4,274,451

7,136,884

5,585,497

9,243,578

Valuation of investment properties
	Investment properties are stated at fair value, which has been determined based on valuations at the reporting date.
Valuations are performed by accredited independent valuers with recent experience in the location and category of
properties being valued. The valuations are based on the income method that makes reference to estimated market
rental values and equivalent yields.

15. Investment in subsidiaries
Company
2011
RM
3,153,524

Unquoted shares, at cost
(a)

2010
RM
3,573,522

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:
Effective interest
Name of subsidiaries

(i)

held
2011
%

2010
%

100

100

Principal activities

Incorporated in Malaysia:

Held by the Company:
Alam Sekitar Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

Provision of environmental consultancy
and monitoring services

ALS Technichem (M) Sdn. Bhd.

59

59

Laboratory analysis and reports and
consulting services
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15. Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d.)
(a)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d.)
Effective interest
Name of subsidiaries

held
2011
%

2010
%

Quantum Up Returns Sdn. Bhd.*

100

100

Investment holding company

ASMA International Sdn. Bhd.*

100

100

Environmental consulting services

PI Enviro Technologies Sdn. Bhd.*

100

100

Trading of high end environment

(i)

Principal activities

Incorporated in Malaysia: (cont’d.)

Held by the Company: (cont’d.)

monitoring and laboratory equipment
Perunding Good Earth Sdn. Bhd.*

100

100

Environment, safety and health consulting
and training

Premier Leap Sdn. Bhd.*

73

73

Dormant

Vertical Plus Sdn. Bhd.*

100

-

Dormant

100

100

Environmental consulting services

51

51

Provision of waste management,

Held through subsidiaries:
ASMA Environmental
Consultancy Sdn. Bhd.
(formerly known as ASMA Consultancy
Sdn. Bhd and prior to that known as
Novosh Dynamics Sdn. Bhd.)*
Progressive Uni San (M) Sdn. Bhd.*

consultancy and services.
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15. Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d.)
(a)

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (cont’d.)
Effective interest
Name of subsidiaries

(ii)

held
2011
%

2010
%

80

80

Principal activities

Incorporated outside Malaysia

Held through subsidiaries:
Incorporated in Indonesia:
PT ALS Indonesia *
(subsidiary incorporated in Indonesia)

Laboratory analysis and reports and
consulting services

Incorporated in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia:
Saudi ASMA Environmental

70

70

Solution LLC*
		
(b)
		

*

Provision of environmental consultancy
and monitoring services

Audited by firms other than Ernst & Young

Acquisition of a subsidiary
Vertical Plus Sdn. Bhd.

		On 30 September 2011, the Company acquired 100% equity interest in Vertical Plus Sdn. Bhd. (“VPSB”). Upon the
acquisition, VPSB became a subsidiary of the Group. VPSB, an unlisted company incorporated in Malaysia, has yet
to commence business operations since the date of incorporation.
		

The fair value of the identified assets and liabilities of VPSB at the date of acquisition were:
Carrying

Trade and other receivables represent net identifiable asset

Fair value

amount

RM

RM
2
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15. Investment in subsidiaries (cont’d.)
(b)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (cont’d.)

		

Vertical Plus Sdn. Bhd. (cont’d.)

		

Total cost of business combination

		

The total cost of the business combination is as follows:
RM
Cash paid

		

2

The effect of the acquisition on cash flows is as follows:
RM

Total cost of business combination representing consideration settled in cash

2

Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired

(2)

Net cash inflow on acquisition
		

-

Goodwill arising on acquisition
RM
Fair value of net identifiable assets

2

Less: Non-controlling interest

-

Group’s interest in fair value of net identifiable asset

2

Goodwill on acquisition of VPSB

-

Cost of business combination

2

		

Impact of acquisition in statements of comprehensive income

		

From the date of acquisition, VPSB has contributed loss of RM1,000 to the Group’s profit net of tax.
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16. Investment in associate
Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Quoted shares in Malaysia, at cost

4,141,971

9,084,733

3,628,573

9,084,733

Share of post-acquisition reserves

282,134

513,398

-

-

Less: Provision for diminution in investment

(2,631,971)

(5,456,160)

(2,118,573)

(5,456,160)

1,792,134

4,141,971

1,510,000

3,628,573

3,473,000

3,300,000

3,473,000

3,300,000

Fair value of investment in an associate for
which there is published price quotation

The summarised financial information of the associate is as follows:
2011

2010

RM’000

RM’000

Assets and liabilities
Total assets

72,658

76,644

Total liabilities

44,594

47,815

23,087

28,853

Results
Revenue

(765)

(Loss)/profit for the year

3,754

The details of the associate is as follows:
Effective interest
Name of associate

held
2011
%

2010
%

Principal activities

30.2

30.2

Provision of waste management, consultancy and

Incorporated in Malaysia:
Held by the Company:
PJBumi Berhad

services and services.
The financial year of the above associate is coterminous with those of the Group.
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17. Prepaid land lease payment
Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

500,000

500,000

500,000

500,000

125,000

100,000

125,000

100,000

25,000

25,000

25,000

25,000

At 31 December

150,000

125,000

150,000

125,000

Carrying amount

350,000

375,000

350,000

375,000

Long term leasehold land

325,000

350,000

325,000

350,000

Short term leasehold land

25,000

25,000

25,000

25,000

350,000

375,000

350,000

375,000

Cost
At 1 January/31 December
Amortisation
At 1 January
Amortisation during the year

Analysed as:

18. Intangible assets
Group
2011

2010

RM

RM

Goodwill
Balance as at 1 January

100

13,985,022

16,163,447

Acquisition of subsidiaries

-

284,143

Disposal of subsidiaries

-

(2,462,568)

Balance at 31 December

13,985,022

13,985,022
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

18. Intangible assets (cont’d.)
(a)

Impairment tests for goodwill

		Goodwill has been allocated to the Group’s Cash Generating Units (“CGU”) identified by business segment and
country as follows:
Malaysia

Indonesia

Total

RM

RM

RM

At 31 December 2011
Environmental Consultancy Services

12,839,907

-

12,839,907

Lab Testing Services

-

860,972

860,972

284,143

-

284,143

13,124,050

860,972

13,985,022

12,839,907

-

12,839,907

Waste Management

At 31 December 2010
Environmental Consultancy Services
Lab Testing Services

-

860,972

860,972

284,143

-

284,143

13,124,050

860,972

13,985,022

Waste Management

		

Key assumption amount used in value-in-use calculations

		The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projection
based on financial budgets approved by management. The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations
are:
Profit before
tax margin rate
2011

Discount rate

2010

2011

2010

Environmental Consultancy Services

35%

35%

10%

10%

Lab Testing Services

45%

45%

10%

10%

Waste Management Engineering

10%

10%

10%

10%
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18. Intangible assets (cont’d.)
(a)

Impairment tests for goodwill (cont’d.)

		The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:
		

(i)

Profit before tax margin rate

			The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted profit before tax margin rates is the
average profit before tax margin achieved immediately before the budgeted year, adjusted for expected
efficiency improvement.
		

(ii)

			
		

Discount rate
The discount rate used is based on the risk specific to the CGU.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

		With regard to the assessment of value in use of the subsidiaries, management believes that no reasonably
possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying values of the units to materially
exceed their recoverable amounts.

19. Inventories
Group
2011

2010

RM

RM

Cost
Spares
Work-in-progress
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1,128,811

1,193,538

466,480

210,294

1,595,291

1,403,832

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

20. Trade and other receivables
Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

Trade receivables:
Third parties (Note (b))

27,851,426

28,032,827

88,797

88,797

(88,797)

(88,797)

Less: Allowance for impairment

(2,827,301)

(2,796,173)

Net trade receivables

25,024,125

25,236,654

-

-

-

-

33,820,553

25,623,483

Other receivables:
Amount due from related parties:
- subsidiaries
- associate companies
- related companies

251,185

117,514

251,185

117,514

1,905,716

2,416,707

1,340,288

1,294,541

Deposits

4,339,914

780,953

4,942

4,942

Prepayment

1,478,368

710,186

12,831

5,172

-

-

11,740,000

13,416,667

Dividend receivable
Sundry receivables

4,887,880

3,086,654

282,456

189,160

Tax recoverable

2,338,996

2,043,523

2,256,671

1,819,087

15,202,059

9,155,537

49,708,926

42,470,566

Less: Allowance for impairment
- related companies

(792,590)

(792,091)

(792,590)

(792,091)

- sundry receivables

(164,276)

(164,276)

(164,276)

(164,276)

(a)

14,245,193

8,199,170

48,752,060

41,514,199

39,269,318

33,435,824

48,752,060

41,514,199

Trade receivables

		The Group’s primary exposure to credit risk arises through its trade receivables. The Group’s trading terms with
its customers are mainly on credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally required.
The credit period is generally for a period of one month, extending up to three months for major customers. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.
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20. Trade and other receivables (cont’d.)
(a)

Trade receivables (cont’d.)

		The Group has significant concentration of credit risk from a single customer, the Department of Environment,
with whom the Company has entered into a 20 year concession agreement to install, operate and maintain a
network of air and water quality monitoring stations throughout Malaysia. Included in trade receivables is an
amount owing from the Department of Environment amounting to RM375,446 (2010: RM2,454,962).
		

Ageing analysis of trade receivables
Company

2011

2011

Neither pass due nor impaired

7,732,966

-

1 to 30 days past due not impaired

3,497,381

-

31 to 60 days past due not impaired

1,759,070

-

61 to 90 days past due not impaired

2,070,350

-

927,692

-

9,125,463

-

91 to 120 days past due not impaired
More than 121 days past due not impaired
Impaired

Neither pass due nor impaired

25,112,922

-

2,738,504

88,797

27,851,426

88,797

Group

Company

2010

2010

11,040,918

-

1 to 30 days past due not impaired

5,067,590

-

31 to 60 days past due not impaired

2,173,805

-

61 to 90 days past due not impaired

662,682

-

91 to 120 days past due not impaired

531,337

-

5,760,322

-

More than 121 days past due not impaired
Impaired
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25,236,654

-

2,796,173

88,797

28,032,827

88,797

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

20. Trade and other receivables (cont’d.)
(a)
		

Trade receivables (cont’d.)
Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

		Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment
records with the Group and the Company.
		

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

		The Group has trade receivables amounting to RM17,379,956 (2010: RM14,195,736) that are past due at the
reporting date but not impaired and are unsecured in nature.
		

Receivables that are impaired

		The Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables that are impaired at the reporting date and the movement of the
allowance accounts used to record the impairment are as follows:
Group
Individually impaired
2011
2010
RM
RM
Trade receivables-nominal amount
Less: Allowance for impairment

2,738,504

2,796,173

88,797

88,797

(2,738,504)

(2,796,173)

(88,797)

(88,797)

		

Company
Individually impaired
2011
2010
RM
RM

-

-

-

Movement in allowance accounts
Group
2011
RM
At 1 January
Effect of adopting FRS 139
(Reversal)/charge for the year
At 31 December

Company
2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

2,796,173

1,832,921

88,797

88,797

-

354,515

-

48,830

608,737

-

(48,830)

2,796,173

88,797

88,797

(57,669)
2,738,504

		Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the reporting date relate to debtors that have
defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit enhancements.
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20. Trade and other receivables (cont’d.)
(b)

Amount due from related parties

		Amount due from all related parties are non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand. All related party
receivables are unsecured and are to be settled in cash.
		

Further details on related party transactions are disclosed in Note 33.

		

Other information on financial risks of other receivables are disclosed in Note 34.

21. Investment in unit trusts
Group

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

At cost
At 1 January/31 December

29,179

25,982

29,179

25,982

25,783

26,975

25,783

26,975

At market value
At 1 January/31 December

22. Cash and bank balances
Group

Cash on hand and at banks

Company

2011

2010

2011

2010

RM

RM

RM

RM

33,791,161

15,065,908

6,697,333

649,351

10,748,819

15,087,195

1,004,739

8,666,473

Deposits with:
Licensed banks
Investment banks
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807,328

7,317,634

54,900

2,138,385

45,347,308

37,470,737

7,756,972

11,454,209

Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

22. Cash and bank balances (cont’d.)
(a)	The weighted average effective profit rates of the deposits at the reporting date were as follows:
Group
2011
%

(b)

Company
2010
%

2011
%

2010
%

Licensed banks

2.65

2.65

2.65

2.65

Investment banks

2.45

2.45

2.45

2.45

The average maturities of deposits as at the end of the financial year were as follows:
Group
2011
Days

Company
2010
Days

2011
Days

2010
Days

Licensed banks

30

30

30

30

Investment banks

30

30

30

30

23. Trade and other payables
Group
Current

2011
RM

Company
2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

Trade payables
Third parties

3,367,816

5,382,139

1,100

-

340,278

-

70,960

25,645

-

-

450,246

450,946

Other payables
Amount due to related parties:
- Related companies
- Subsidiary companies

355,737

57,879

-

25,966

Accruals and provision

3,578,954

4,756,628

69,640

198,338

Dividend payable

3,255,000

2,645,000

-

-

- Corporate shareholder of a subsidiary

Sundry payables

4,228,263

379,460

519,031

133,237

11,758,232

7,838,967

1,109,877

834,132

15,126,048

13,221,106

1,110,977

834,132
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23. Trade and other payables (cont’d.)
(a)

Trade payables

		Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade credit terms granted to the Company range from
30 days to 90 days (2010: 30 days to 90 days).
(b)

Amount due to related parties

		Amount due to all related parties are non-interest bearing and are repayable on demand. These amounts are
unsecured and are to be settled in cash.
		

Further details on related party transactions are disclosed in Note 33.

		

Other information on financial risks of other payables are disclosed in Note 34.

24. Borrowings
Group
2011
RM

2010
RM

Current
Secured:
Advance

939,565

822,234

Total

939,565

822,234

	The weighted average effective profit rate at the reporting date of the borrowings and hire purchase were as follows:
Group
2011
%
Hire purchase
Term loan: Fixed rate

2010
%

2.75 - 6.90

2.75 - 6.90

8.50

8.50

	Advance relates to short term loan granted to a subsidiary in relation to project in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. The term
loan is secured and guaranteed by a corporate shareholder.
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25. Retirement benefit obligation
In prior year, the Company introduced an unfunded defined benefit plan for eligible employees.
Group/Company
2011
2010
RM
RM
The amount recognised in the statement of financial position are determined
as follows:
124,779

Present value of obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Unrecognised actuarial losses
Net liability

1,652,420

-

-

124,779

1,652,420

-

-

124,779

1,652,420

1,652,420

826,210

811,691

826,210

Movement in net liability was as follows:
At 1 January
Provision during the year (Note 6)

(2,262,267)

Payment made during the year
As at 31 December

-

201,844

1,652,420

811,691

826,210

-

-

811,691

826,210

811,691

826,210

The amount recognised in the statements of comprehensive income:
Current service cost
Analysed as:
Current
Non-current
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26. Share capital
Number of ordinary shares
2011
2010

Amount
2011
RM

2010
RM

Authorised share capital
Ordinary shares of RM0.10 each:
At 1 January/At 31 December

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

100,000,000

100,000,000

658,000,000

658,000,000

65,800,000

65,800,000

Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of RM0.10 each:
At 1 January/At 31 December

27. Other reserves
Group
2011
RM

Company
2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

2,590,523

1,457,808

917,218

489,062

407,839

1,269,308

64,813

428,156

-

(136,593)

-

-

At 31 December

2,998,362

2,590,523

982,031

917,218

Revaluation reserve

3,163,730

2,935,981

982,031

917,218

(345,458)

-

-

2,998,362

2,590,523

982,031

917,218

2,935,981

2,121,982

917,218

489,062

At 1 January
Increase/(decrease) during the year
Non-controlling interest

Foreign exchange reserve

(165,368)

Revaluation reserve
At 1 January
Revaluation of properties
At 31 December
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227,749

813,999

64,813

428,156

3,163,730

2,935,981

982,031

917,218
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27. Other reserves (cont’d.)
Group

Company

2011
RM

2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

(345,458)

(664,174)

-

-

180,090

455,309

-

-

Foreign Exchange Reserve
Balance at 1 January
Arising in the year

-

Non-controlling interest
Balance at 31 December

(165,368)

(136,593)

-

-

(345,458)

-

-

The nature and purpose of each category of reserve are as follows:
(a)

Revaluation reserve

		This reserve includes the increase arising from the revaluation of land and building above their costs.
(b)

Foreign exchange reserve

		The foreign exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries.

28. Retained profit
	Prior to the year assessment 2008, Malaysian companies adopt the full imputation system. In accordance with the
Finance Act 2007 which was gazetted on 28 December 2007, companies shall not be entitled to deduct tax on dividend
paid, credited or distributed to its shareholders, and such dividends will be exempted from tax in the hands of the
shareholders (“single tier system”). However, there is a transitional period of six years, expiring on 31 December 2013,
to allow companies to pay franked dividends to their shareholders under limited circumstances. Companies also have
an irrevocable option to disregard the Section 108 of the Income Tax Act, 1967 (“Section 108”) balance and opt to pay
dividends under the single tier system. The change in the tax legislation also provides for the Section 108 balance to be
locked-in as at 31 December 2008 in accordance with Section 39 of the Finance Act 2007.
	The Company and all its Malaysian incorporated subsidiaries did not elect for the irrevocable option to disregard the
Section 108 balance. Accordingly, during the transitional period, the Company may utilise the credit in the Section 108
balance as at 31 December 2009 to distribute cash dividend payments to ordinary shareholdings as defined under the
Finance Act 2007. As at 31 December 2011, the Company has sufficient credit in the Section 108 balance to pay franked
dividends out of its entire retained profits.
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29. Deferred taxation
Group
2011
RM

Company
2010
RM

2010
RM

2,059,276

939,554

177,142

Recognised in income statements (Note 10)

(394,602)

697,516

262,598

619,694

Recognised in equity

(254,143)

414,050

(220,300)

142,718

At 1 January

At 31 December

3,170,842

2011
RM

2,522,097

3,170,842

981,852

939,554

3,618,994

3,657,146

981,852

939,554

(486,304)

-

-

3,170,842

981,852

939,554

Presented after appropriate offsetting as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

(1,096,897)
2,522,097

	The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and assets during the financial year prior to offsetting are as
follows:
Deferred tax assets of the Group:
Unabsorbed
Provisions
RM

Unused tax
losses
RM

Total
RM

At 1.1.2011

(486,304)

-

-

(486,304)

Recognised in the income statement

(610,593)

-

-

(610,593)

(1,096,897)

-

-

(1,096,897)

(486,304)

-

-

(486,304)

At 31.12.2011
At 1.1.2010
Recognised in the income statement
At 31.12.2010
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-

-

-

-

(486,304)

-

-

(486,304)
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29. Deferred taxation (cont’d.)
Deferred tax liabilities of the Group:
Fair value

At 1.1.2011
Recognised in income statement

Property,

adjustment on

plant and

investment

Revaluation

equipment
RM

property
RM

surplus
RM

2,369,124

458,227

Total
RM

829,795

3,657,146

-

-

-

-

98,513

-

(136,665)

(38,152)

At 31.12.2011

2,467,637

458,227

693,130

3,618,994

At 1.1.2010

1,983,514

146,321

415,745

2,545,580

Recognised in equity

Recognised in income statement
Recognised in equity
At 31.12.2010

-

-

-

-

385,610

311,906

414,050

1,111,566

2,369,124

458,227

829,795

3,657,146

Deferred tax assets of the Company:
Unabsorbed

At 1.1.2011

capital

Unused tax

Provisions
RM

allowances
RM

losses
RM

-

-

Total
RM
-

-

Recognised in the income statement

-

-

-

-

At 31.12.2011

-

-

-

-

At 1.1.2010

(70,969)

-

-

(70,969)

Recognised in the income statement

70,969

-

-

70,969

-

-

-

-

At 31.12.2010
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29. Deferred taxation (cont’d.)
Deferred tax liabilities of the Company:
Fair value
Property,

adjustment

plant and

on investment

Revaluation

equipment
RM

property
RM

surplus
RM

Total
RM

At 1.1.2011

6,082

729,560

Recognised in income statement

(5,703)

56,937

211,364

262,598

-

-

(220,300)

(220,300)

379

786,497

194,976

981,852

At 1.1.2010

39,074

146,321

62,716

248,111

Recognised in income statement

(32,992)

583,239

(1,522)

548,725

-

-

142,718

142,718

6,082

729,560

203,912

939,554

Recognised in equity
At 31.12.2011

Recognised in equity
At 31.12.2010

203,912

939,554

	Deferred tax recognised in equity relates to deferred tax liability provided on revaluation surplus of investment
properties

30. Dividends
Amount
2011
RM

Net ordinary shares
2011
2010
RM
RM

2010
RM

Recognised during the year:
In respect of the financial year ended 31.12.2011
Interim
0.51 sen less 25% taxation,
on 658,000,000 ordinary
shares declared on
17 November 2011 and paid
on 16 December 2011
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2,500,021

-

-

-
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30. Dividends (cont’d.)
Amount
2011
RM

Net ordinary shares
2011
2010
RM
RM

2010
RM

In respect of the financial year ended 31.12.2010
Final
0.10 sen per share
less 25% taxation,
658,000,000 ordinary
shares approved
by shareholders
on 23 May 2011 and
paid on 6 June 2011

493,503

-

-

0.3

-

2,023,359

-

-

2,993,524

2,023,359

In respect of the financial year ended 31.12.2009
Final
0.41 sen per share
less 25% taxation, on
658,000,000 ordinary
shares approved
by shareholders
on 26 May 2010 and
paid on 7 June 2010

	At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2011, of
0.61 sen per share less 25% taxation on 658,000,000 ordinary shares, amounting to a net dividend payable of RM3,000,000
(0.46 sen net per ordinary share) will be proposed for shareholders’ approval. The financial statements for the current
financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders, will be accounted for
in equity as an appropriation of retained profits for the next financial year ending 31 December 2012.
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31. Commitments
Group
2011
RM
(a)

2010
RM

Capital commitments
Property, plant and equipment
Approved but not contracted for:
Approved and contracted for:

(b)

2,743,442

2,929,186

309,608

8,850

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments - company as lessee
Group
2011
RM

2010
RM

Future minimum rentals payable:
Not later than 1 year

105,772

165,334

-

-

105,772

165,334

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

		Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Company for use of motor vehicles. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of five years.

32. Contingent liabilities
Company
2011
RM

2010
RM

Unsecured
Corporate guarantees given in respect of banking
facilities obtained by the subsidiaries
No fair value adjustment required as no liability is expected to arise.
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12,000,000

9,611,000
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33. Significant related party transactions
(a)	In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the Company had the
following transactions with related parties during the financial year:
2011
RM

2010
RM

Group
Revenue from environmental service provided to a subsidiary of a corporate
shareholder; Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn. Bhd: Progressive Impact Technology Sdn.
(273,308)

Bhd.
Management fees payable to Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn. Bhd.

(1,313,617)

-

96,000

Rental income from subsidiaries of Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn. Bhd.
- Foxboro (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
- Untung Aquaculture Sdn. Bhd.

(337,884)

(337,884)

(22,800)

(22,800)

Company
Management fees received from subsidiary:
-

- Alam Sekitar Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

(750,000)

Rental income from subsidiaries:
- Alam Sekitar Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.

(280,620)

(280,620)

- Perunding Good Earth Sdn. Bhd.

(9,800)

(16,800)

(337,884)

(337,884)

(22,800)

(22,800)

Rental income from subsidiaries of Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn. Bhd.
- Foxboro (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.
- Untung Aquaculture Sdn. Bhd.
Management fees payable to Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn. Bhd.

-

96,000

		The directors are of the opinion that the transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business
and have been established on terms and conditions that are not materially different from that obtainable in
transactions with unrelated parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (cont’d)
31 December 2011

33. Significant related party transactions (cont’d.)
(b)

Compensation to key management personnel

		Key management personnel are defined as persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group and the Company directly or indirectly, including any director of the Group
and the Company. The remuneration and compensation of Directors and other members of key management
during the year was as follows:
Group
2011
RM
Short term employee benefits (Note 7)

Company
2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

3,065,016

2,900,685

3,008,016

2,798,685

2,779,790

2,574,685

2,755,790

2,550,685

Included in the total key management
personnel are:
Executive directors’ remuneration (Note 7)

34. Financial instruments
(i)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

		The Group’s financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that adequate financial resources are available for
the development of the Group’s businesses whilst managing its profit rate, liquidity and credit risks. The Group
operates within clearly defined guidelines that are approved by the Board and the Group’s policy is not to engage
in speculative transaction.
(ii)

Profit rate risk

		The Group’s primary profit rate risk relates to profit-bearing debt; the Group had no substantial long term profitbearing assets as at 31 December 2011. The investments in financial assets are mainly deposits held with
licensed banks which are short term in nature and are not held for speculative purposes.
		The information on maturity dates and effective profit rates of the financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in
their respective notes.
(iii)

Liquidity risk

		The Group actively manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as to
ensure that all repayment and funding needs are met. As part of its overall prudent liquidity management, the
Group maintains sufficient levels of cash or cash convertible investments to meet its working capital requirements.
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31 December 2011

34. Financial instruments (cont’d.)
(iv)

Credit risk

		Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of credit approvals, limits and
monitoring procedures. Credit risks are minimised and monitored by strictly limiting the Group’s associations
to business partners with high creditworthiness. Trade receivables are monitored on an ongoing basis via Group
management reporting procedures.
(v)

Foreign currency risk

		The Group is exposed to transactional currency risk primarily through sales and purchases that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise
to this risk are primarily Saudi Riyal, United States Dollar (USD), Australian Dollar (AUD) and Indonesian Rupiah
(IDR). Foreign exchange exposures in transactional currencies other than functional currencies of the operating
entities are kept to an acceptable level.
		The net unhedged financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group that are not denominated in their functional
currencies are as follows:

Functional currency of group company

Ringgit

Indonesian

Sudanese

Malaysia

Rupiah

Pound

Total

RM

RM

RM

RM

As at 31.12.2011:
Saudi Riyal
United States Dollar

3,451,587

-

-

3,451,587

660,077

1,377,203

-

2,037,280

Australian Dollar

7,316

-

-

7,316

Singapore Dollar

14,492

-

-

14,492

4,133,472

1,377,203

-

5,510,675

As at 31.12.2010:
Saudi Riyal

3,054,736

-

-

3,054,736

United States Dollar

558,483

757,812

(14,075,345)

(12,759,050)

Australian Dollar

(51,958)

-

-

(51,958)

Singapore Dollar

(35,615)

-

-

(35,615)

3,525,646

757,812

(14,075,345)

(9,791,887)
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31 December 2011

34. Financial instruments (cont’d.)
(vi)

Fair value

		The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their respective carrying values on the
statement of financial position of the Group and the Company except for the following:
Group

Company

Carrying

Fair

Carrying

Fair

amount

value

amount

value

RM

RM

RM

RM

Financial assets
At 31.12.2011:
Investment in associate
Investment in unit trust (Note 21)

1,792,134

3,473,000

1,510,000

3,473,000

29,179

25,783

29,179

25,783

5,058,500

6,040,000

5,058,500

6,040,000

25,982

26,975

25,982

26,975

At 31.12.2010:
Investment in associate
Investment in unit trust (Note 21)

		The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values of the following classes of financial
instruments:
		

(i)

Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables and short term borrowings

			The carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the relatively short term maturity of these financial
instruments.
		

(ii)

Investment in unit trusts

			Other investments and investments in unit trusts that are quoted are determined by reference to stock
exchange market bid price at the close of the business on the reporting date.
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35. Segmental information
(a)

Business segments

		

The Group is organised into 3 major business segments:

		

(i)

		

(ii)	Laboratory Testing Services - chemical testing, consultancy service and other services of similar nature.

		

(iii)	Waste management engineering - provision of sewerage and solid waste management systems.

Environmental Consultancy Services - providing environmental related services.

		Other business segments include the results of the Company and an investment holding subsidiary.
Environmental

2011

Laboratory

consultancy

testing

Waste

services

services

management

Others

Elimination

Consolidated

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue

52,759,086

28,479,000

6,614,280

-

87,852,366

-

3,390,676

-

13,470,000

(16,860,676)

-

52,759,086

31,869,676

6,614,280

13,470,000

(16,860,676)

87,852,366

14,252,858

16,428,922

(299,511)

8,290,969

(13,805,545)

24,867,693

-

-

-

-

-

-

(3,319,907)

(3,663,174)

23,400

(614,097)

-

Results
Segment results/profit
from operations
Finance costs
Taxation
Profit after taxation

(7,573,778)
17,293,915
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35. Segmental information (cont’d.)
(a)

Business segments (cont’d.)
Environmental

2011 (cont’d.)

Laboratory

consultancy

testing

Waste

services

services

management

Others

Elimination

Consolidated

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

Assets
Segment assets

49,871,328

43,643,913

4,212,389

99,993,728

(76,287,095)

121,434,263

Unallocated corporate
assets

13,985,022

Consolidated total
assets

135,419,285

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

31,237,312

12,028,919

4,138,390

26,797,139

(52,765,413)

21,436,347

Unallocated corporate
liabilities

-

Consolidated total
liabilities

21,436,347

Other Information
Capital expenditure
Depreciation

122

324,970

2,706,014

61,328

53,932

-

3,146,244

(1,922,541)

(1,594,969)

(7,132)

(348,752)

-

(3,873,394)
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35. Segmental information (cont’d.)
(a)

Business segments (cont’d.)
Environmental

2010

Laboratory

consultancy

testing

Waste

services

services

management

Others

Elimination

Consolidated

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

RM

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Total revenue

57,283,074

25,314,744

1,353,186

-

-

83,951,004

-

4,176,387

-

17,131,284

(21,307,671)

-

57,283,074

29,491,131

1,353,186

17,131,284

(21,307,671)

83,951,004

14,966,018

12,486,480

(12,848,322)

1,286,962

(8,657,110)

7,234,028

-

-

10,519

-

-

10,519

(3,496,153)

(3,219,754)

-

(4,746,455)

4,782,911

(6,679,451)

Results
Segment results/profit
from operations
Finance costs
Taxation
Profit after taxation

565,096

Assets
Segment assets

42,396,163

38,506,915

409,042

94,232,415

(66,134,499)

109,410,036

Unallocated corporate
assets

13,985,022

Consolidated total
assets

123,395,058

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

26,916,147

12,135,640

247,085

23,983,634

(42,871,062)

20,411,444

Unallocated corporate
liabilities

-

Consolidated total
liabilities

20,411,444

Other Information
Capital expenditure

3,812,066

1,403,026

4,580

362,735

-

5,582,407

Depreciation

(2,181,661)

(1,493,333)

(50,178)

(373,595)

-

(4,098,767)
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35. Segmental information (cont’d.)
(b)

Geographical segments

		The Group’s geographical segments are for its subsidiaries that are involved in laboratory testing services,
environmental consultancy and monitoring services which operates in three geographical areas:
		

i.

Malaysia

		

ii.

Indonesia

		

iii.

Saudi Arabia

		The directors are of the opinion that the inter-segment transactions have been entered into in the normal course
of business and have been established on terms and conditions that are not materially different from those
obtainable in transactions with unrelated parties.
Total revenue
from external

Segment

Capital

customers

assets

expenditure

RM

RM

RM

Malaysia

65,346,444

93,360,722

3,049,421

Indonesia

8,115,917

9,184,698

96,823

2011

Saudi Arabia

14,390,005

18,888,843

-

87,852,366

121,434,263

3,146,244

Malaysia

55,325,718

84,418,536

987,717

Indonesia

8,319,262

7,466,107

415,309

834,726

-

-

19,471,298

17,525,393

3,372,981

83,951,004

109,410,036

4,776,007

2010

Sudan
Saudi Arabia
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36. Fair value of financial instruments
	The carrying amounts of the financial instruments of the Group and the Company are a reasonable approximation of their
fair value.
	The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair values of the following classes of financial
instruments:
(a)

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables

		The carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the relatively short term maturity of these financial
instruments.
(b)

Borrowings and hire purchase payables

		The carrying amount of the borrowings and hire purchase payables are reasonable approximation of fair value
due to the insignificant impact of discounting.

37. Capital management
	The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.
	The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.
	The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group
includes within net debt, borrowings, hire purchase payables, trade and other payables, less cash and bank balances.
Capital represents the total equity.
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37. Capital management (cont’d.)
The debt to equity ratio as at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are as follows:
Group
2011
RM
Borrowings (Note 24)

Company
2010
RM

939,565

2011
RM

2010
RM
-

822,234

-

15,126,048

13,221,106

1,110,977

Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 22)

(45,347,308)

(37,470,737)

(7,756,972)

(11,454,209)

Net debt

(29,281,695)

(23,427,397)

(6,645,995)

(10,620,077)

Total equity

65,800,000

65,800,000

65,800,000

65,800,000

Capital and net debt

36,518,305

42,372,603

59,154,005

55,179,923

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Trade and other payables (Note 23)

Gearing ratio

834,132

38. Supplementary information - breakdown of retained profits into realised and unrealised
	The breakdown of the retained profits of the Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2011 into realised and
unrealised profits is presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25
March 2010 and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised
Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as
issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Group
2011
RM

Company
2010
RM

2011
RM

2010
RM

Total retained profits of the
Company and its subsidiaries
- Realised
- Unrealised

25,226,136

13,834,340

5,187,909

3,061,929

2,552,097

3,170,842

981,852

939,554

27,778,233

17,005,182

6,169,761

4,001,483

335,682

513,398

-

-

-

-

-

-

335,682

513,398

-

-

1,079,162

3,276,225

-

-

29,193,077

20,794,805

6,169,761

4,001,483

Total share of retained profits from associates
- Realised
- Unrealised

Less : Consolidation adjustments
Retained profits as per financial statements
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As at 20 April 2012

Share Capital
Authorised share capital
Issued and paid up share capital
Class of Shares
Voting rights
No. of shareholders

:
:
:
:
:

RM100,000,000.00
RM65,800,000.00
Ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
One (1) vote per ordinary share
2,217

Analysis of Shareholdings
Size of holdings
1 - 99
100 – 1,000
1,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 100,000
100,001 – less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares

No. of shareholders

%

Shareholdings

%

3
492
660
844
215
3
2,217

0.135
22.192
29.769
38.069
9.697
0.135
100.000

175
339,750
4,428,650
31,847,000
230,744,425
390,640,000
658,000,000

0.000
0.051
0.673
4.839
35.067
59.367
100.00

Substantial Shareholders
Shareholdings
Name
Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn Bhd
Lembaga Tabung Haji
Stardom East Holdings Limited
Haji Zaid Bin Abdullah
Hajjah Zaidah Binti Mohd Salleh

Direct

%

Indirect

%

308,345,000
65,000,000
43,340,000
45,725,100
8,668,000

46.86
9.88
6.59
6.95
1.32

317,296,500 *
354,353,600 *

48.22
53.85

* Deemed interest by virtue of his/her substantial shareholdings in Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn Bhd and his/her spouse and children’s
shareholdings in the Company.

Directors’ Interest in Shares

Name

Direct

Haji Zaid Bin Abdullah
Hajjah Zaidah Binti Mohd Salleh
Hassan Bin Hussain
Lee Weng Chong
Emeritus Professor Dato’ Mohd Sham Bin
Mohd Sani
Datuk Abdul Hamid Bin Sawal
Dato’ Hajjah Rosnani Binti Ibarahim
*
**

Shareholdings
%
Indirect

45,725,100
8,668,000
4,500,000
1,050,000

6.95
1.32
0.68
0.16

420,000
-

0.063
-

317,296,500*
354,353,600*
16,000,000**
-

%
48.22
53.85
2.43
-

-

-

Deemed interest by virtue of his/her substantial shareholdings in Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn Bhd and his/her spouse and
children’s shareholdings in the Company.
Deemed interest by virtue of his spouse’s shareholdings in the Company.
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As at 20 April 2012

Thirty Largest Shareholders
No.

Name

No. of Shares

%

1.

Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn Bhd

282,300,000

42.902

2,

Lembaga Tabung Haji

65,000,000

9.878

3.

Cimsec Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd

43,340,000

6.586

31,225,100

4.745

16,880,000

2.565

14,500,000

2.203

10,400,000

1.580

Bank of Singapore Limited for Stardom East Holdings Limited
4.

Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account – AmIslamic Bank Berhad for Zaid Bin
Abdullah

5.

Amsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account – AmIslamic Bank Berhad for Zaiyadal
Keluarga Sdn Bhd

6.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Zaid Bin Abdullah

7.

Cimsec Nominee (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Bank of Singapore Limited for Citrine Holdings Ltd

8.

Rokiah Binti Ali

10,000,000

1.519

9.

Khalijah Binti Mohd Salleh

8,261,900

1.255

10.

Zaidah Binti Mohd Salleh

6,972,000

1.059

11.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

6,500,000

0.987

Pledged Securities Account for Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn Bhd
12.

Kal-Yadaiin Sdn Bhd

6,218,800

0.945

13.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

6,000,000

0.911

Pledged Securities Account for Rokiah Binti Ali
14.

Raja Mohd Nazri Bin Raja Abd Malek

4,950,000

0.752

15.

Hassan Bin Hussain

4,500,000

0.683

16.

Ahmad Ridzwan Bin Mohd Salleh

4,474,075

0.679

17.

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

4,380,700

0.665

Exempt AN for Phillip Securities Pte Ltd (Client Account)
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Thirty Largest Shareholders (cont’d)
No.

Name

18.

RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

No. of Shares

%

4,079,600

0.620

Pledged Securities Account for Ab Ghaus Bin Ismail
19.

Rasal Keluarga Sdn Bhd

3,992,150

0.606

20.

Azman Bin Hussin

3,500,000

0.531

21.

Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

3,350,000

0.509

Pledged Securities Account for Tan Seng Hong
22.

Zaiyadal Keluarga Sdn Bhd

2,665,000

0.405

23.

Cimsec Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

2,420,000

0.367

CIMB Bank for Mohammed Amin Bin Mahmud
24.

Ab Ghaus Bin Ismail

2,000,000

0.303

25.

AIBB Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

1,900,000

0.288

Pledged Securities Account for Batu Bara Resources Corporation Sdn Bhd
26.

Manohar Hasan Bin Ameer Ali

1,780,000

0.270

27.

Zaidah Binti Mohd Salleh

1,696,000

0.257

28.

Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

1,695,200

0.257

Pledged Securities Account for Tang Sing Ling
29.

Ahmad Rafa’i Bin Abdullah

1,689,520

0.256

30.

Wong Kim Choong

1,435,000

0.218
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List of Properties
As at 31 December 2011

Title / Location

Description /
existing use

Tenure

Total Land
area

Built up
area of
building

Age of
building
/ land
(years)

NBV as
at 31-122011
RM

Date of
revaluation

H.S. (D) 142757
Lot PT. No. 17702
known as No. 19
Jalan Astaka U8/84
Bukit Jelutong
Business &
Technology Centre,
40150 Shah Alam,
Selangor Darul
Ehsan

1 unit of 3
storey semi-D
factory
building /
Office / area
warehouse.

Freehold

1,575.05
square
metres

1,432.70
square
metres

12

5,200,000

5.12.2011

H.S. (D) 142756
Lot PT. No. 17701
known as No. 21
Jalan Astaka U8/84
Bukit Jelutong
Business &
Technology Centre,
40150 Shah Alam,
Selangor Darul
Ehsan

1 unit of 3
storey semi-D
factory
building /
Office area /
warehouse.

Freehold

2,215.43
square
metres

1,954.80
square
metres

12

7,500,000

5.12.2011

H.S. (D) 120004
Lot PT. No. 1322
Seksyen 8 known
as No. 18 Jalan
Liku 8/B, Section 8
40000 Shah Alam,
Selangor Darul
Ehsan

1 unit double
storey shop
house /Shop
house.

Leasehold
for a period
of 99 years
expiring on
06.09.2097

153.29
square
metres

306.58
square
metres

12

402,500

27.04.2009

PN 9529 Lot 42270
known as No. 19
Jalan Kencana
Mas 1/1, Tebrau
Business Park,
Taman Daya, 81100
Johor Bahru, Johor
Darul Takzim

1 unit 3 storey
shop office /
Shop office /
Laboratory.

Freehold

153 square
metres

451.91
square
metres

12

328,053

27.04.2009

Leasehold
for a period
of 30 years
expiring
02.12.2026

22.5 acres

-

-

350,000

27.04.2009

H.S. (D) 9844, PT 7605, Agricultural
land / Prawn
Mukim of Lumut,
breeding
District of Manjung,
State of Perak
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List of Properties (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2011

Title / Location
H.S. (D) 142762
Lot PT. No. 17707
known as No. 9Jalan
Astaka U8/84 Bukit
Jelutong Business &
Technology Centre,
40150 Shah Alam,
Selangor Darul Ehsan

Description /
existing use
1 unit of 3
storey semi-D
factory building
/ Office /
warehouse
area /
Laboratory.

Tenure
Freehold

Total Land
area

Built up
area of
building

1,575.05
square
metres

1,432.70
square
metres

Age of
building
/ land
(years)

NBV as
at 31-122011
RM

Date of
revaluation

12

3,193,659

27.04.2009
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Appendix I

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Existing Articles
2
(insertion of additional definition)
No existing definition.

Proposed amendments to the Articles
2
“Share Issuance Scheme” means a scheme
involving a new issuance of shares to the
employees.

4(e)

4(e)

no Director shall participate in a Share
Issuance Scheme unless the members at a
general meeting have approved the specific
allotment made to such Director.

63

In every notice calling a general meeting of
the Company shall specify the place, day and
hour of the meeting, and there shall appear
with reasonable prominence in every such
notice a statement on the appointment of
proxies.

63

132

every issue of shares or options to employees
and/or Directors of the Company shall be
approved by the members in general meeting
and no Director shall participate in such issues
of shares or options unless:(i)

the members in general meeting have
approved of the specific allotment to be
made to such Director; and

(ii)

he holds office in the Company in an
executive capacity PROVIDED ALWAYS
that a Director not holding office in an
executive capacity may so participate, in
an issue of shares pursuant to a public
issue or public offer.

In every notice calling a general meeting of the
Company shall specify the place, day and hour
of the meeting, and there shall appear with
reasonable prominence in every such notice a
statement that a member entitled to attend and
vote is entitled to appoint up to 2 proxies to attend
and vote instead of him, and that a proxy may,
but need not be a member of the Company and
the appointment shall specifies the proportion
of his holdings to be represented by each proxy.
Provided always that, where a member of the
Company is an authorised nominee as defined
under the Central Depositories Act, it may
appoint at least one proxy in respect of each
securities account it holds with ordinary shares
of the Company standing to the credit of the said
securities account.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

63A

None

63A (i)

A member of the Company who is entitled to
attend and vote at a meeting of the Company,
or at a meeting of any class of members of
the Company, may appoint not more than
two (2) proxies to attend and vote instead of
the member at the meeting.

(ii)

Where a member of the Company is an
authorised nominee as defined in the
Central Depositories Act, it may appoint
not more than two (2) proxies in respect of
each securities account it holds in ordinary
shares of the Company standing to the credit
of the said securities account.

(iii)

Where a member of the Company is an
exempt authorised nominee which holds
ordinary shares in the Company for multiple
beneficial owners in one (1) securities
account (“omnibus account”), there is no
limit to the number of proxies which the
exempt authorised nominee may appoint in
respect of each omnibus account it holds.
An exempt authorised nominee refers to an
authorised nominee defined under Central
Depositories Act which is exempted from
compliance with the provisions of subsection
25A (1) of Central Depositories Act.

(iv)

Where a member appoints more than one (1)
proxy, the proportion of shareholdings to be
represented by each proxy must be specified
in the instrument appointing the proxies.

(v)

A proxy need not be a member. There shall
be no restriction as to the qualification of the
proxy and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b)
of the Act shall not apply to the Company.

(vi)

A proxy appointed to attend and vote at
a meeting of the Company shall have the
same rights as the member to speak at the
meeting.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

107

134

It shall not be necessary to give any Director or
Alternate Director, who has not got an address
in Malaysia, registered with the Company, notice
of a meeting of the Directors. Unless otherwise,
determined by the Directors from time to time a
seven (7) days' notice of all Directors' meetings
shall be given to all Directors and their Alternate
Directors who have a registered address in
Malaysia, except in the case of an emergency,
where reasonable notice of every Directors'
meeting shall be given in writing. The notice of
each Directors' meeting shall be deemed to be
served two (2) days following that on which a
properly stamped letter containing the notice is
posted. The Directors may also hold a meeting
of directors at two (2) or more venues within
or outside Malaysia using any technology that
enable the Directors as a whole to participate
for the entire duration of the meeting; and that
all information and documents for the meeting
must be made available to all Directors prior to
or at the meeting. A minutes of the proceedings
of such meeting is sufficient evidence of the
proceedings to which it relates.
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107 (a)

Unless otherwise, determined by the
Directors from time to time a seven (7) days’
notice of all Directors’ meetings shall be
given to all Directors and their Alternate
Directors. The Company may in addition
to or where appropriate may instead of
serving a notice or document by post, send
a copy of such notice or document using
electronic communications to the address
provided by the Directors as the address to
which the electronic communications may
be sent. Where a notice or document is sent
using electronic communication, service
of the notice or document shall be deemed
to be effected by properly addressing and
transmitting the notice of document.

(b)

The Directors may also hold a meeting of
directors at two (2) or more venues within
or outside Malaysia using any technology
that enable the directors as a whole to
participate for the entire duration of the
meeting; and that all information and
documents for the meeting made available
to all Directors prior to or at the meeting. A
minutes of the proceedings of such meeting
is sufficient evidence of the proceedings to
which it relates.

PROGRESSIVE IMPACT CORPORATION BERHAD (203352-V)
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
No. of shares held

CDS Account No.
-

*I/We
of

		

FORM OF PROXY

-

[Full name in block, NRIC/Company No.]

Tel:

being member(s) of Progressive Impact Corporation Berhad, hereby appoint:-

Full Name (in Block)

NRIC / Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares
%

NRIC / Passport No.

Proportion of Shareholdings
No. of Shares
%

Address
*and / or (delete as appropriate)

Full Name (in Block)
Address

or failing him, the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/our proxy(ies) to attend and vote for *me/us and on *my/our behalf at the 20th
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Ground Floor, Bangunan BKA, Lot 10, Jalan Astaka U8/84, Bukit Jelutong
Business & Technology Centre, 40150 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan on Friday, 15 June 2012 at 9.30 a.m. and at any adjournment
thereof, and to vote as indicated below:RESOLUTION
1
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
2
Payment of Final Dividend
3
Re-election of Hassan Bin Hussain
4
Re-election of Emeritus Professor Dato’ Dr. Mohd Sham Bin Mohd Sani
5
Re-election of Datuk Abdul Hamid Bin Sawal
6
Re-election of Dato’ Hajjah Rosnani Binti Ibarahim
7
Directors’ Remuneration
8
Re-appointment of Messrs Ernst & Young as Auditors
9
Proposed Renewal of the Existing Shareholders’ Mandate and Proposed New Shareholders’
Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature
10 Authority to Allot and Issue Shares
11 Amendments to the Articles of Association

FOR

AGAINST

Please indicate with an “X” in the space provided whether you wish your votes to be cast “for” or “against” the resolutions. In the absence
of specific direction, your proxy will vote or abstain as he thinks fit.
Signed this  

  day of  

* Delete whichever is not applicable

, 2012

Signature of Shareholder/Common Seal

NOTES:i)

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint up to 2 proxies to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy may but need not be a member of the
Company and the provisions of Section 149(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply.

ii)

A member of the Company who is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act 1991, can appoint at least one
proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.

iii) Where a member of the Company is an exempt authorised nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one
securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the number of proxies which the exempt authorised nominee may appoint in respect of each
omnibus account it holds.
iv) Where a member or authorized nominee or an exempt authorized nominee appoints more than one (1) proxy, the proportion of shareholdings to be
represented by each proxy must be specified in the instrument appointing the proxies.
v)

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointer is a
corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.

vi) The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any under which it is signed or notarially certified copy of that power of
authority shall be deposited at the office of the Company’s Share Registrar at Level 17, The Gardens North Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra,
59200 Kuala Lumpur, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Meeting or adjourned meeting.
vii) For the purpose of determining who shall be entitled to attend this meeting, the Company shall be requesting the Bursa Malaysia Depository Sdn Bhd
to make available to the Company, a Record of Depositors as at 8 June 2012. Only a Member whose name appears on this Record of Depositors shall be
entitled to attend this meeting or appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

fold here

Stamp

The Share Registrar
Tricor Investor Services Sdn Bhd
Level 17 The Gardens North Tower
Mid Valley City
Lingkaran Syed Putra
59200 Kuala Lumpur

fold here
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